
Mark James  LLM, DPA, DCA
Prif Weithredwr,
Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin.  SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen.  SA31 1JP

DYDD IAU, 13EG EBRILL, 2017

AT:  HOLL AELODAU’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A 
PHLANT

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW I FYNYCHU CYFARFOD 
O’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT SYDD I’W 
GYNNAL YN Y SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN AM 
10.00 A.M. AR DDYDD LLUN, 24AIN EBRILL, 2017 ER MWYN 
CYFLAWNI’R MATERION A AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA 
ATODEDIG. 

Mark James DYB
PRIF WEITHREDWR

 

AILGYLCHWCH OS GWELWCH YN DDA

Swyddog Democrataidd: Catherine Gadd
Ffôn (Llinell Uniongyrchol): (01267) 224088
E-bost: CEGadd@sirgar.gov.uk
Cyf: AD016-001

Pecyn Dogfennau



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT
13 AELOD O’R CYNGOR, 2 AELOD ANETHOLEDIG SYDD Â PHLEIDLAIS 

A 3 RHIANT-LYWODRAETHWYR ETHOLEDIG SYDD Â PHLEIDLAIS

GRŴP PLAID CYMRU – 6 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd C.A. Campbell
2. Cynghorydd J.M. Charles
3. Cynghorydd W.G. Hopkins
4. Cynghorydd P. Hughes Griffiths
5. Cynghorydd M.J.A. Lewis
6. Cynghorydd J.E. Williams (Cadeirydd)

GRŴP ANNIBYNNOL – 3 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd I.W. Davies
2. Cynghorydd A. James
3. Cynghorydd D.W.H. Richards

GRŴP LLAFUR – 4 AELOD

1. Cynghorydd D.J.R. Bartlett (Is-Gadeirydd)
2. Cynghorydd J.D. James
3. Cynghorydd P.E.M. Jones
4. Cynghorydd J. Williams

AELODAU ANETHOLEDIG SYDD Â PHLEIDLAIS (2)

1. Mrs. V. Kenny Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys Gatholig Rufeinig 
2. Mrs. J. Voyle Williams Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru 

RHIANT LYWODRAETHWYR ETHOLEDIG SYDD Â PHLEIDLAIS (3) 
Cyfnod yn y swydd yn dod i ben ar y 31/03/2018

1. Mrs. E. Heyes Ardal 3 – Llanelli 
2. Mrs. K. Hill Ardal 1 – Dinefwr 
3. Mrs. A. Pickles Ardal 2 – Caerfyrddin 



AGENDA  
1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB. 

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL. 

3. DATGAN CHWIPIAID PLAID SYDD WEDI EU GWAHARDD. 

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD I 
LAW). 

5. DIWEDDARIAD RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL. 5 - 56

6. EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO A CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU. 57 - 58

7. LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y 
PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 15EG MAWRTH, 2017. 

59 - 66



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT
24ain O EBRILL 2017

Diweddariad Rhianta Corfforaethol

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

Adnoddau priodol a darpariaeth ar gyfer plant sy'n derbyn gofal a rhai sy'n gadael gofal
Canlyniadau ar gyfer plant sy'n derbyn gofal a rhai sy'n gadael gofal

Rhesymau: 

Mae'r cyngor yn rhieni corfforaethol i'r plant hyn

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Bwrdd Gweithredol er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: 
NAC OES

Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: 
Cyng. Gareth Jones (Addysg a Phlant) 

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:
Addysg a Phlant 

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Stefan Smith

Awdur yr adroddiad:
Bethan T James

Swyddi:

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth 

rheolwr gwasanaeth

Rhifau Ffôn / Cyfeiriadau E-
bost:

01267 246545
sjsmith@sirgar.gov.uk

01267 246545
btjames@sirgar.gov.uk

Tudalen 5

Eitem Rhif  5



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

EDUCATION & CHILDREN 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24th APRIL 2017 

Corporate Parenting Annual Update
 

Update on Corporate Parenting, unaccompanied asylum seeking children and 
placement moves within fostering service.

The report highlights successful outcomes and the challenges of retaining foster carers 
and having sufficient staff and resources to meet the increasing demands of care 
leavers.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

IMPLICATIONS
I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate 
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications 
associated with this report.

Signed:   Stefan Smith Head of Service

Policy, 
Crime & 
Disorder 
and 
Equalities

Legal Finance ICT Risk 
Management 
Issues

Staffing 
Implications

Physical 
Assets 

NONE NONE YES NONE ONE NONE NONE

Tudalen 6



Finance

There are resource implications for maintaining services for the growing numbers of care 
leavers as well as recruiting and retaining foster carers.

CONSULTATIONS
I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed 
below:

Signed:   Stefan Smith                       Head of Service

1. Local Member(s) – N/A 

2. Community / Town Council – N/A

3. Relevant Partners – N/A

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations – N/A

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 – Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

3 or more placement 
moves

attached

Scrutiny 2017 Attached

UASC Attached

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Corporate Parenting Services Update 

Context

The local authority has a Corporate Parenting Strategy that outlines the measures it 
will take to ensure that outcomes for looked after children and care leavers are 
positive.

This strategy is overseen by the Corporate Parenting Panel of Elected Members, 
Directors and Heads of Service which meets quarterly.

This is an annual update summarising key outcomes and challenges for this service 
area.

Looked After Children

Looked after children are children for whom the courts have decided are unable to 
live with their birth families. These children are looked after by the local authority who 
act as Corporate Parents to these children.

Total number of looked after children

The local authority is currently a corporate parent to 210 looked after children.

Accommodation

Of the 210 children who are looked after by Carmarthenshire 3 reside in children’s 
homes, 55 reside with family or relatives and 147 live with foster families. We have 4 
young people living independently under the age 18 and 1 young person in a mother 
and baby placement.  

Tudalen 9



Education

There are currently 60 looked after children in Primary School and 96 in 
Secondary Schools. Most children are educated in mainstream education, only 
11 children are accessing alternative education provision.

7

3

1

Rhydygors Pwll/ Llwynhendy Landsker

Number of LAC pupils

Tudalen 10



School attainment is generally good with 62.5% of looked after pupils without 
a statement of SEN achieved KS2 CSI in 2016, 85% of  pupils achieving KS3 CSI, 
and  73% achieving level 2 at GCSE.

47 44
36

28

73

13 16
21

5

47

2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016
0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

% L1 %L2

% LAC Pupils Achieving L1 and L2 GCSE

Additional support and advice is provided to schools in managing and supporting the 
attendance and attainment of looked after children. In the last 18 months the 
Corporate Parenting Team have directly supported 79 secondary pupils and 62 
primary pupils across 73 schools. The support can be in the form of training, support 
groups and advice for staff; in-school support from Teaching Assistants; or direct 
tuition and resources for the children and young people.

Emotional Health Support

Corporate Parenting Services provide access to theraplay, counselling and 
therapeutic interventions for looked after children and their carers. Currently 
this service supports 1/3 of all children who are looked after.

Care leavers

Care leavers are young people between the age of 16 and 25 who have previously 
been looked after by the local authority. They are entitled to advice, guidance and 
support from Children’s Services.

Total number of care leavers

At the end of January 2017 we were supporting 111 and at the end of March 2017 
we are currently supporting 123 care leavers.

Tudalen 11



Care Leavers are a projected growth area

115
136

158
176 186 180 173 166 158

Total April 
2016

Total April 
2017

Total April 
2018

Total April 
2019

Total April 
2020

Total April 
2021

Total April 
2022

Total April 
2023

Total April 
2024

0

50

100

150

200

Projected No. of Care Leavers 16-25 yrs

Education, Employment and Training

Corporate Parentign ch

As of January 25th 2017 29% of Care Leavers were NEET (33 out of 115 young 
people). The Leaving Care Team increasingly provide a range of training and 
support for care leavers that they can’t access elsewhere, helping to reduce the 
NEET figures. 40 children were in further education,  4 in Higher education and 13 in 
employment. When compared to other authorities in Wales, the outcomes for our 
care leavers are good.

Tudalen 12



33
40

4

13
9 10

3 1 1 1

NEET

F/T
 FU

RHER ED

F/T
 HIGHER ED

F/T
 EMPLO

YMENT

F/T
 EDUCATIO

N

F/T
 TRAIN

IN
G SC

HEME

NEXT ST
EP TO W

ORK

P/T FU
RTHER ED

P/T EMPLO
YMENT

P/T TRAIN
IN

G
0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45

115 Care Leavers

Accommodation

Most Care Leavers remain in Foster Care, Supported Lodgings or with Family 
members. As Corporate Parents we aim for our young people to remain in their local 
communities and live in accommodation that is conducive to emotional wellbeing. 
Children’s Services have a duty to ensure that Care Leavers are in appropriate 
accommodation and not in B&B, and this year we have not had any care leavers in 
B&B.

Where our care leavers are currently residing

15

30

6

2

27

8

19

2

5

1

8

34

10

4

22

9

19

7
3

0

Su
pporte

d Lo
dgin

g
WIR

Su
pporte

d Acco
mmodati

on

Unive
rsi

ty
Fa

mily

Priv
ate

 Tenan
cy

Council 
Tenan

cy 
/ H

ousin
g 

Ass

Other: c
usto

dy/ 
mental

 

healt
h Temp Acco

mm

Home Owner
0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

Quarter 2 Quarter 3

Tudalen 13



Challenges moving forward

Ensuring we meet the emotional health needs of looked after children.

There is growing recognition for the need to ensure that looked after children have 
early access to emotional health support. Services within health under Specialist 
CAMHS are limited and it often falls to the local authority to deliver this therapeutic 
work. There is no additional funding provided by Welsh Government to prioritise this 
work.

Developing Attachment Aware Schools.

Through utilising the pupil deprivation grant for looked after children, Corporate 
Parenting Services will continue to offer ongoing support to schools. 

A growing number of care leavers.

Meeting the projected growth in care leavers will be challenging and there will be a 
need to expand the numbers of staff to support these young people.

Ensuring our care leavers live in appropriate accommodation.

The current spend for 2017/19 on supporting and providing accommodation for care 
leavers for Children’s Services is £293,000.00 which falls into overspend as this is 
not a statutory funded area. Some accommodation provision is not in the most 
appropriate geographical areas or in the most appropriate condition. Care leavers tell 
us they would like more flexible, responsive support in meeting their accommodation 
needs; with some flexibility to try independent living but then have increased support 
if it doesn’t work.

Ensuring we have sufficient foster carers to meet demand.

While the numbers of looked after children are dropping the complexity of their 
needs remain challenging. Carmarthenshire provides one of the lowest 
reimbursement to foster carers and this impacts on the availability of skilled carers to 
meet complex needs of children. Recruiting and retaining foster carers will continue 
to be a challenge.

Tudalen 14



1

Proposal for accommodating child refugees and asylum seekers in 
Carmarthenshire 

Presented by: Syrian Refugee Task Group and Partners

February 2017

Overview

The need for every authority in the UK to accommodate child refugees and asylum 
seekers has been highlighted. There are a range of programmes and ways in which 
child refugees and asylum seekers may re-settle in the UK.

1. Syrian Resettlement Programme, (SRP)
Carmarthenshire is aiming to resettle 60 families over the five year duration of 
the programme. To qualify for resettlement, individual family members are 
assessed for vulnerability. Although single people may qualify under the 
scheme, most case referrals comprise families. Families arrive under a five 
year Humanitarian Protection Visa, giving access to work, education and a 
range of benefits. The Home Office provides funding for the initial year, with a 
reduced level of funding over the following four years. There are also other 
funding pots available, (for example special cases funding and additional 
ESOL funding).

The project is managed by the Carmarthenshire SRP Multi-Agency Task 
Group. EYST provide a caseworker support service and Syria Sir Gar provide 
community support.

The SRP is not directly a children’s scheme, however, children are being 
resettled with their parents and siblings in Carmarthenshire with the delivery 
of the programme.

2. Vulnerable Children’s Resettlement Scheme (VCRS).
This scheme is for vulnerable children and has the same level of funding as 
the SRP. The scheme is administered by the Home Office Syrian 
Resettlement Team who also administer the SRP. The scheme is open to 
children from the Middle East and North Africa who have registered as 
refugees in Turkey, Iraq, Jordan, Lebanon and Egypt. The Home Office is 
currently appealing for Local Authorities to take part in the VCRS. The 
scheme is open for 3,000 people. Most children who qualify will arrive with 
parents or guardians.

The scheme is for those deemed to be ‘Children at risk’ as identified by the 
UNHCR, e.g.; those with specific medical needs or disabilities; survivors of or 
those at risk of violence, abuse or exploitation including sexual and gender 
based violence; children at risk of harmful traditional practices such as FGM 
or forced marriage; children without legal documentation, children in 

Tudalen 15



2

detention, children at risk of losing their refugee status, and children at risk of 
not attending school, children associated with armed forces or groups, facing 
the risk of child labour or already working, and child carers. The best interest 
process is being developed with NGOs  

The VCRS runs in exactly the same way as the SRP via the same Home 
Office Team and with the same systems and funding. As Carmarthenshire is 
already delivering the SRP, the VCRS would be a relatively easy scheme to 
deliver. It is noted that children and families may not be Syrian, therefore 
different cultural and integration needs may exist. This may include steps to 
avoid isolation and possibly specific language support.

3. Dub’s Amendment
This was an amendment to the Immigration Act to accept an unspecified 
number of asylum seeking children from Europe. On the 8/2/17, UK 
Government issued a statement that announced the effective closure of the 
scheme. Around 200 children arrived after the closure of the Calais camp. 
These have been reunited with family members in the UK where relevant and 
appropriate or otherwise entered in to the National Transfer Scheme as 
UASC. Another 150 children will arrive from Greece, France and Italy in the 
spring.

An agreement has been reached between Welsh Government and the WLGA 
on expenditure of £350,000 across the social service regions.

Clarity is required if children will enter the NTS and require support as UASC 
or whether children would be resettled as part of Family Reunion. It may be 
possible to support children under UASC, (please see below), although the 
timeframe may be challenging. There is a remote chance that children may 
arrive in Carmarthenshire as part of the Family Reunion process, again clarity 
is required on how this is communicated to the LA.

4. Other resettlement schemes. Children may arrive with families under the 
other current resettlement schemes in the UK.  The numbers who arrive under 
these schemes is relatively low and none of the schemes are in operation in 
Carmarthenshire. These schemes comprise the Gateway Protection 
Programme, Mandate Refugee Scheme and the Afghan Interpreters’ Scheme.

5. Family Reunion
Children may arrive having applied for Family Reunion. This is where 
dependents, (children under 18), and spouses / partners who formed part of 
the family unit before their sponsor fled their country claim asylum to join 
family members in the UK. There is no charge for Family Reunion application 
and there is also no additional funding that can be claimed by the local 
authority.

Tudalen 16



3

6. Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children, (UASC).

a. Spontaneous arrivals. There are no major ports or airports in 
Carmarthenshire; therefore it is unlikely that unaccompanied asylum 
seeker children will be encountered by the Home Office at port of entry. If 
an unaccompanied asylum seeker child was encountered by the Home 
Office at port of entry in Carmarthenshire, the child would be taken into the 
care of the County Council. Unaccompanied asylum seeker children may 
be encountered by the Police in a number of circumstances. This may 
include situations of child sexual exploitation, labour exploitation, criminal 
exploitation and domestic servitude. Unaccompanied asylum seeker 
children may also be encountered along the major road arteries, including 
the extension of the M4 corridor and A40 to the major ports in 
Pembrokeshire. Again, any unaccompanied asylum seeker children 
encountered in these circumstances would be taken in to the care of 
Carmarthenshire County Council as the ‘entry local authority.’ Currently 
there are 4 unaccompanied asylum seeker children in foster care or 
supported lodgings in Carmarthenshire who arrived spontaneously.

b. Independent Fostering Agencies. Other local authorities place 
unaccompanied asylum seeker children via IFAs with independent foster 
carers. There are currently no unaccompanied asylum seeker children with 
Independent Foster Carers in Carmarthenshire. Local authorities tend to 
make use of IFAs where they are unable to find fosters carers, supported 
lodgings or supported accommodation to meet their duties as an entry 
local authority. Additionally, a number of Local Authorities may be 
disproportionately impacted by numbers of unaccompanied asylum seeker 
children. The /placing local authority is still responsible for each out of area 
unaccompanied asylum seeker child placed in Carmarthenshire via an 
IFA. The number of UASC within Carmarthenshire from other authorities 
are therefore out of the direct management control of our County Council, 
but would be equally entitled to education, training and accommodation 
within Carmarthenshire once they are post 18

c. National Transfer Scheme, (NTS). The Home Office is requesting Local 
Authorities to register with the scheme. The NTS has been put in place to 
facilitate a more equitable distribution of unaccompanied asylum seeker 
children across local authorities. Local authorities in the south east of 
England have been disproportionately impacted by unaccompanied 
asylum seeker children as ‘entry local authorities.’ Kent has between 800 
to 900 unaccompanied asylum seeker children. The following paper 
outlines how the NTS may be delivered in Carmarthenshire, especially 
outlining the services and partnerships that are in place locally.

Tudalen 17



4

Scoping, costs and feasibility of Carmarthenshire County Council participating 
in the National Transfer Scheme for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children.

Countries of Origin and Numbers
Last year there were 3,206 asylum claims from unaccompanied asylum seeker 
children in the UK. This represented 9% of all asylum claims. The top three countries 
of origin were

- Afghanistan - 709
- Eritrea - 645
- Albania -425

Currently, the focus of support services has been on delivering the Syrian scheme. 
From the above, it can be seen that wider cultural and linguistic requirements are 
likely to exist with accepting unaccompanied asylum seeker children under the NTS. 
Careful planning will be required to ensure social bonds within the children’s ethnic 
and national context as well as integration into the wider community.

The Home Office formula for equitable distribution of unaccompanied asylum seeker 
children across the UK is 0.07% of the child population of any given area. At the last 
Census, Carmarthenshire had a child population of 37,642.

37,642 x 0.07 / 100 = 26 children.

This optimum number of 26 needs to be balanced against the number of arrivals per 
year, the building up of age cohorts and the estimated number of spontaneous 
arrivals that the local authority would be responsible to take into care. Numbers will 
be limited by the availability of services and support, primarily foster carer capacity, 
supported lodgings or supported accommodation. The number of unaccompanied 
asylum seeker children placed with IFAs in Carmarthenshire may also be considered 
alongside the calculation of 26 children.

Proposal for accommodating child refugees and asylum seekers in 
Carmarthenshire
Currently, Carmarthenshire County Council has insufficient foster carer capacity to 
accommodate unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC). 

This paper proposes that Carmarthenshire County Council develop a service 
for UASC and child refugees over the age of 16 by:

 Recruiting ‘host families’ for UASC over the ages 16 and 17 similar to 
supported lodging providers that the other young people access in 
Carmarthenshire through a SLA with Llamau and links with Syria Sir Gar.

 Providing direct community inclusion support via a keyworker model provided 
by EYST.

 Developing an inclusive EOTAS education programme in partnership with 
Coleg Sir Gar.

Tudalen 18



5

Rationale

 Many 16-17 unaccompanied asylum seeker children have a high level of 
independence and would fit well into supported lodgings and the above 
support provision. 

 The costs of providing this service through a supported lodging model can be 
reimbursed through existing Home Office Payments.

Under 16s. With the growing public awareness and also support from community 
organisations like Syria Sir Gar, it may be possible to recruit foster carers. This 
would help to assist with placing the most vulnerable young unaccompanied asylum 
seeker children with foster carers. The resettlement of under 16s could be a 
consideration after provision for 16-17 year olds has been implemented. This will 
give time to identify potential foster carers and further develop support structures.

Cost reimbursement for 16 and 17 year old UASC 

The local authority can claim a minimum of £91 per day £637.00 per week to cover 
their accommodation and support needs of UASC.

Reimbursement 2016/17 rates:

*Subject to paragraph 4.2, payment for each eligible UASC will be at the rates set out in the table 
below. A “legacy” case is a UASC who entered the UK on or before 30 June 2016

This amount can be used to:

 Provide reimbursement to host families for UASC.
 Contribute to the additional costs of expanding the number of support workers 

with EYST.
 Provide the leaving care allowance of £57 per week per UASC.
 Cover basic social worker and admin costs as UASC are classified as looked 

after children.

Recruitment of host families for Supported Lodgings

In Carmarthenshire vulnerable young people between the ages of 16-25 can reside 
in supported lodgings. These are host families who agree to have a young lodger 
and provide an element of care and support for them.

The local authority has an existing service level agreement with the charity Llamau 
to recruit supported lodging providers including vetting, DBS, training and ongoing 

Tudalen 19



6

support. It is proposed that we ask Llamau to actively recruit host families for UASC 
ages 16 and 17.

Syria Sir Gar, EYST and Llanelli Multicultural network have establish a very positive 
group of community volunteers and have twitter and facebook pages that could help 
advertise the need for host families and put them in touch with Llamau.

The average cost of weekly allowance for supported lodgings is £130-£150 per 
week. Young people are expected to contribute towards these costs and provide 
some of their own meals. We would offer £150.00 per week per young person.

There may be a possible need to make a financial contribution to Llamau per young 
person per week to support any additional management and support costs from 
Llamau. Estimated at £100 per week per host family.

Allowances for unaccompanied minors

Young people under the age of 18 who are care leavers receive £57 allowance per 
week to live on. They have to contribute £20 to their host family to cover utility costs 
and buy their own clothes and toiletries, travel, run a mobile phone and fund any 
extracurricular activities with the remaining £37. 

Unaccompanied minors will need to be provided with this allowance in order to 
support their independence.

Access to education and training

Coleg Sir Gar can provide an intensive ESOL course for unaccompanied minors. 
Parents within our Syrian Refugee families could also attend as could the older 
children from these families for whom a full time school placement may not be 
appropriate. 

Additional funding is available for the establishment and delivery of ESOL courses 
and this would be explored with Coleg Sir Gar and the Syrian Refugee Project Lead.

An allowance in the region of £100.00 per young person per week could be made to 
Coleg Sir Gar to contribute towards activities, training costs, staffing costs and 
resources to develop and deliver an appropriate curriculum.

To provide ESOL  for 6hrs @£50 (to cover costs of teacher plus on-costs and 
overheads)  would be £300 per week. Funding is ample to cover these costs and 
would be able to provide for 6-8 students in a class.

Additional specialist support in the community

An estimated £100.00 per young person per week could contribute towards 
purchasing additional support workers from EYST with whom the authority currently 
has a service level agreement to support Syrian Refugee families. 

The workers could develop support and engagement activities in the local 
community and make links with the Youth Service, Syrian Refugee support groups 
and Syria Sir Gar as appropriate.

Tudalen 20



7

Children’s Services support.

Unaccompanied asylum seekers are classed as looked after children and as such 
require planning and oversight from Children’s Services. There will be additional 
work for existing staff to cover the additional case load. Currently guidance indicates 
that these costs can be recharged. 

Allocations for the financial year 2015/16 were:

Indirect costs:  

Social workers & on costs: £14.00 per day

Admin & finance & on costs: £3.00 per day

Premises costs: £3.00 per day

Other costs: £4.00 per day

Corporate recharges: £2.00 per day

Total indirect: £26.00 per day

A total of £130 per working week.

£26 per day per UASC for the average of 253 working days in a year = £6,578.00 
per year, per UASC.

Summary of costs per single UASC

Per Week Per Month Per Year

Host families £150.00 £675.00 £7,800.00

Llamau £100.00 £450.00 £5,200.00

Personal Allowance   £57.00 £256.00 £2,964.00

College support £100.00 £450.00 £5,200.00

EYST support £100.00 £450.00 £5,200.00

Children’s Services £130.00 £585.00 £6,578.00

Total £637.00 £2,866.50          £32,942.00

Tudalen 21



8

Cost reimbursement for post 18 UASC

Young Person’s Allowance
Once a child is 18 they are entitled to claim benefits in their own right and the leaving 
care allowance of £57 per week ceases.
 
Once UASC reach 18 they would need to obtain a Biometric Card from the Home 
Office to verify their immigration status & they would then apply for which ever 
benefit that would fit their circumstances: 

If available for work- Job Seekers Allowance of Universal Credit or Sickness (ESA). 
If they are 18/19 and still in full time education then they are eligible for Income 
Support. They would fall under the category of having a Habitual Residence Test (as 
all people coming to this country from abroad do).

Supported lodging costs
Young people over the age of 18 living in supported lodgings are entitled to claim 
Housing Benefit (HB). The way Housing Benefit for temporary accommodation is 
funded will be changing from April 2017.  Welsh Government will have funds from 
DWP to fund the difference between normal HB rates and the cost of supported 
housing of various kinds.  It is likely to be based on the current rate payable for 
temporary housing for homeless people, which in this case is £105 a week.

 Housing Benefit currently contributes to Supported Lodging providers under 
Llamau. The shortfall in the £150 payment to the Supported Lodging Provider of £45 
per week is made up from £20 contributed form the young person’s benefits and £25 
from the Supporting People Grant as they currently are in line with the SLA with 
Carmarthenshire County Council. Alternatively, should number of post 18 UASC 
increase significantly, it could be paid from the Home Office leaving care 
allocation for post 18s.

Specified accommodation

Is classed as the following:

 for Universal Credit, Supported Exempt Accommodation is a resettlement 
place or accommodation provided by a non-metropolitan county council (in 
England), housing association, registered charity or voluntary organisation 
(the organisation providing the accommodation, or person acting on their 
behalf, must provide the claimant with care, support or supervision)

 accommodation into which the claimant has been admitted in order to meet a 
need for care, support or supervision that is provided by one of the following: 

o county council
o housing association
o registered charity
o voluntary organisation

 accommodation for victims of domestic violence where they are managed by: 

Tudalen 22



9

o local authorities
o county councils
o housing associations
o registered charities
o voluntary organisations

 hostel accommodation provided by local authorities where care, support or 
supervision is also provided

Home Office post 18 Leaving Care Costs
The Home Office have increased the leaving care fund from £150 a week to £200 
per week. The lower limit of the Local Authority bearing the costs of the first 25 care 
leavers has been scrapped. There is now no lower limit, which is particularly relevant 
to the Carmarthenshire proposal. 

This £200 per week would be sufficient to contribute to the cost of Children’s 
Services staff, help and support with education and training from Children’s Services 
(calculated above as £130 per week) and a contribution to Supported Lodging 
providers.

Wider issues for consideration

Trafficking and Modern Slavery
Unaccompanied asylum seeker children are very vulnerable to trafficking and 
modern slavery. This includes child sexual exploitation, labour exploitation, criminal 
exploitation and domestic servitude. It is quite possible that children will have 
experienced exploitation on route to the UK. It is also possible that children may fear 
debt bondage to their traffickers and be vulnerable to disappearing from care to be 
further exploited on arrival to the UK. Supported lodgings providers will need to be 
briefed on trafficking and modern slavery. Children will have the support of social 
workers with an awareness of trafficking and modern slavery, including how to report 
cases to the National Referral Mechanism.
Family Reunion
An unaccompanied asylum seeker child who has resettled in Carmarthenshire may 
have parents or siblings abroad who used to live together as a family unit. In such 
cases, an application may be made for Family Reunion. No charge exists for Family 
Reunion applications. The application will take into account the best interests of the 
child. It may be that the child is re-united with family members abroad, for example if 
there are family members as refugees in Germany or Sweden. Another possibility is 
that family could join the child in Carmarthenshire. There is no additional funding 
from the Home Office for such circumstances. An enquiry could be made to the 
Home Office to ascertain how frequently Family Reunion takes place after 
unaccompanied asylum seeker children have re-settled in the UK.

National Transfer Scheme and Independent Foster Agencies
Once the NTS starts to function, this may limit the number of unaccompanied asylum 
seeker children being placed with foster carers by IFAs.

Tudalen 23



10

In addition to reducing the need for out of area placements via IFAs, the NTS will 
also enable responsibility to be transferred to the host authority where this is 
agreeable and desirable. In theory, this could give a different route to accepting 
unaccompanied asylum seeker children via the NTS for Carmarthenshire County 
Council and would also take back management control from IFAs. In practice, IFAs 
may not be willing for a transfer of responsibility to Carmarthenshire County Council 
due to their loss of receipt of funding. Further clarification from the Home Office is 
required in how transfer to a host authority may take place.

Visas and Leave to Remain
The Home Office determine leave to remain and visas on a case by case basis. 
There are three scenarios.

1. Limited leave to remain.
2. Refugee Visa, (usually five years)
3. Humanitarian Protection Visa, (usually five years).

Once leave to remain or a visa expires and if the person is then over 18, the Home 
Office will consider return to their home country if this is assessed as a safe option. 
Children and young people often adapt to their new surrounding quickly.  A 
repatriation can be profoundly upsetting for a young person and disruptive to further 
or higher education. There can also be a wider impact on host communities and 
examples of young people being placed in Detention Centres and returned to 
countries of origin can attract large petitions and national press.

Timescales and action plan

Aim to commence with the recruitment of 4-6 host families immediately and to have 
them trained and in place by end of June 2017.

 July and August 2017- resettlement of 4-6 UASC age 16-18 to 4 host 
families. Introduce support from EYST and Children’s Services.

 September 2017- commence intensive ESOL course at Coleg Sir Gar.
 Further numbers-will be driven by the recruitment of host families, with 

further 16-17 year olds welcomed as and when host families are recruited and 
trained. 

 The aim will be 6- 8 families per year commencing 2018

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
UASC 4-6 6-8 6-8 6-8 6-8
Running 
total

4-6 10-12 16-18 22-24 28-30

Tudalen 24



11

Project Proposal Next Steps

 That approval is sought at the SRTG for this proposal.
 On agreement that approval is sought from DMT and CMT.
 That the SRTG ask for Home Office confirmation that the proposed costs will 

be covered.
 That on confirmation of funding a target be set of 4 host families to be 

recruited per year.
 That the Home Office is contacted and updated on how many UASC 

Carmarthenshire can accommodate only ONCE host families are recruited 
and trained.

 That progress in this area is reported to the existing Syrian Refugee Task 
Group.

 That the SRTG consider the proposal that Carmarthenshire participates in the 
Vulnerable Children’s Resettlement Scheme.

 That the project be jointly managed by Matt Miller and Bethan T James, 
linking in with Michael Smith.

Tudalen 25



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



1

Carmarthenshire Children’s Services summary report and action 
plan in respect of Looked after Children subject to three or more 

placement moves.

During 2015-2016 there were 32 children subject to three or more placement 
moves in Carmarthenshire. This represented 14% of the LAC population and 
was the highest proportion amongst all Welsh authorities. It is also fair to say 
that this has been an ongoing issue in the service.

However; it is equally important to stress that this is one indicator in respect of 
outcomes for children. In other indicators such as school stability and 
achievement; Carmarthenshire ranks as one of the best performing authorities 
in Wales and has consistently performed well.

This report presents a summary of information and an action plan to address 
the need for improvement and stability in placements for looked after children 
within Carmarthenshire.

Analysis of 2015/16:

See following graphs for age and gender

3

1 1 1

2 2

4

5

3

7

3

0-1  2 6 9 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Placement Moves 2015 - 2016
According to Age

Age of Children / Young People

Number of 
Children/Young 

People 

Tudalen 27



2

Placement Moves 2015 – 2016 According to Age

Number of Children / Young 
People

Age of Children/Young People

3 0-12 months
1 2 years
1 6 years
1 9 years
2 11 years
2 12 years
4 13 years
5 14 years
3 15 years
7 16 years
3 17 years

  

Gender  : 15 were male and 17 were female.

15
17

Males
Females

Gender 

The highest number of moves according to gender

1 female aged 13 years old experienced 15 moves

1 female aged 14 years old experienced 8 moves

2 females aged 14 experienced 6 moves

1 female aged 17 experienced 7 moves

2 males aged 15 and 16 experienced 6 moves each

Tudalen 28



3

13
14 14

17

15
16

15

8

6
7

6 6

Female Female Female Female Male Male
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Age
Number of Moves

Number of Moves / Gender & Age

 The remaining 25 young people and children experienced 5 moves or less and 
out of this figure 13 children had 3 placement moves. Only 1 case relates to a 
sibling group of two children a brother and sister placed together in foster 
care. Both children were eventually placed with relative carers. In this case the 
placements broke down because the children wanted to be cared for by family 
members.

 There were 3 cases relating to parent and child placements.  One of these 
cases experienced 5 moves of a parent with her baby. 

In summary the case highlighted that the placement was complex and highly 
challenging for foster carers to monitor on a 24 hour basis. The parents’ 
behaviour was a contributing factor in the breakdown of 2 separate foster 
placements.  Alongside these concerns was the foster carers’ inability to have 
the skills to manage this appropriately and safely.   The Local Authority was 
obliged to source and finance an Independent Parent and Child Placement 
through the court proceedings.   The mother and baby in the interim had to 
move to a short term foster placement whilst an alternative placement was 
secured with an Independent Fostering Agency.  The court ordered that the 
placement should be extended so the local authority had no available 
resources to provide a placement in house.

In the other case a young parent with her baby experienced 3 placement 
moves. The first move was due to the foster carer’s ill health so a new 

Tudalen 29



4

placement had to be sought.   The mother eventually returned to live in the 
community with her daughter with extended family and social work support 
which resulted in a good outcome for the mother and child.

In the third case study three placement moves occurred as there was no 
suitable parent and baby placement available .The baby was discharged from 
hospital to a short term foster placement and then moved with their mother to 
a parent and baby placement. Following the completion of a parenting 
assessment the child returned home to live with her parents which was viewed 
as a successful outcome.

The care planning highlighted in these 3 case studies demonstrates a need to 
recruit and retain skilled foster carers for parent and baby placements when 
they are required. Parent and baby placements should only be sought when 
alternative arrangements cannot be secured with the extended family or 
supporting a parent to manage safely in the community. In Carmarthenshire 
during 2015-16   3 providers for parent and baby placements retired and we 
currently have 3 providers across Carmarthenshire.

The overall findings in respect of the data concludes that the majority of more 
than 3 placement moves is in children aged 11 years and over. In summary 
these cases represent many young people who have experienced trauma and 
neglect in their early family life and struggle with attachment issues. Some of 
the children require a more therapeutic parenting style and initially a sole 
placement with a foster family because of their challenging and complex 
needs. There is some evidence to suggest that some of the teenagers have 
highly challenging behaviour and have experienced short periods of time out of 
school and education and this has raised the pressure on placement stability 
with foster carers and family units. 

The data reported also highlights that some older children wanted to return 
home to their families and this has not always been successful in some cases. 
This has led to placement moves and it is recognised that there is a need in 
terms of resources to provide greater support when children initially return 
home.

Action Plan for 2017-19

The Local Authority will need to continue to focus on the child care prevention 
strategy and ensure as many children as possible remain living at home with 

Tudalen 30



5

family or friends. The Social Services and Wellbeing Act 2014 is clear on the 
responsibilities of local authorities in this respect:

 Section 15 of Act requires that local authorities must provide or arrange for 
the provision of a range and level of preventative services which they 
consider will achieve the following purposes:

a) Contributing towards preventing or delaying the development of 
people’s needs for care and support
b) Reducing the needs for care and support of people who have such needs
c) Promoting the upbringing of children by their families, where that is 
consistent with the well-being of children
d) Minimising the effect on disabled people of their disabilities
e) Contributing towards preventing people from suffering abuse or neglect
f) Reducing the need for:

I. Proceedings for care or supervision orders under the Children Act 
1989

II. Criminal proceedings against children 
III. Any family or other proceedings in relation to children which might 

lead to them being placed in local authority care, or
IV. Proceedings under the inherent jurisdiction of the High Court in 

relation to children 
g) Encouraging children not to commit criminal offences
h) Avoiding the need for children to be placed in secure accommodation; 
and
i) Enabling people to live their lives as independently as possible.

       A local authority must have regard to the importance of achieving these 
purposes in relation to the exercise of all it functions, not just in relation to 
social services functions. A Local Health Board must also have regard to the 
importance of achieving these purposes in the exercise of its functions. 

Where children do enter care every attempt will be made to place in house 
and within the county boundaries.

Action 1. Maintain the focus on reducing the number of looked after children 
through the provision of a range of preventative services as detailed in the 
Family Support and Prevention Strategy 2016-18. Regular threshold meetings 
will continue to ensure that there is robust gate-keeping in respect of children 
entering the statutory service; and the alignment of referrals for both TAF and 

Tudalen 31



6

the statutory service through the Central Referral Team will help to direct 
wherever possible, families to the non-statutory option; unless of course, there 
is a clear safeguarding issue. 

Action 2. Effective use of our panels: Resources, Accommodation and 
Permanency. The first two of these panels regulate support, and all requests 
for children to be accommodated.  In future, they will also play a part in 
requests to move a child who is already in placement where their current 
placement may be at risk. This should reduce the number of times children 
move to another foster placement when, with additional support and services, 
the placement could have been saved.

Placement stability is monitored through the quarterly Permanency Panel 
which is made up of multiagency professionals. There will be an increase in the 
monitoring of placement support meetings set up and initiated by the fostering 
team to review placements that require additional support services.

Action 3. Recruitment. The fostering service will continue to focus on 
prioritising the recruitment of placements for older children and children with 
complex needs alongside parent and child placements. This will in due course 
offer more skilled resources and choice of placements, to assist the local 
authority in matching children appropriately who have a significantly high level 
of needs. (Appendix 1)

Action 4. No single person should determine a placement is required; or a child 
should be moved. Successful outcomes when working with children and 
families can only be achieved by a team approach. All professionals need to be 
heard and consulted with in any major decision; particularly moving a child. 
Any move is significant and the IRO should also be made aware in advance of 
any proposed move and the view of the IRO sought. 

Removing a child from home and family is a last resort. A child’s foster home 
should be seen in a similar vein.  Foster carers (including kinship carers) must 
be perceived as part of the professional team, and their views given due 
respect. (Appendix 2). This includes providing them with the opportunity to be 
supported by a mentor.

Action 5. Matching. The reality is that it is not always possible to achieve the 
perfect match. Delay can be harmful, but it is also important that any move 
should be planned. Emergency entry into care should be avoided where at all 
possible, this principle also applies to changing placements. 

Tudalen 32



7

Matches will be achieved by means of information sharing and consideration 
involving all relevant professionals, the child and their family, potential carers 
and their families including other children they have in placement. Relevant 
professionals may include: the child's social worker, the supervising social 
worker for the carer, line managers, health and education staff, panel 
members and, on occasions the agency decision maker (where the decision is 
an emergency removal from a foster placement). 

Contact must be considered as part of this process. Ongoing contact will have 
an impact on carers and must be considered when making the match. There 
needs to be honest and open discussions about how the contact will work; its 
potential to increase and the changes to the child’s behaviour that may 
happen as a consequence. 

It should be acknowledged that some children may require a residential 
placement where complex needs and behaviour is too challenging to manage 
in a foster home. However, foster care always remains the first choice.

Action 6. A senior social work practitioner in the fostering service has a specific 
focus on supporting the highly challenging teenage foster placements.  The 
role will identify more appropriate matching and skills of foster carers and 
recognise unmet needs which will require an investment in further training 
resources and support in the recruiting and retention of foster carers. There is 
access to further training through the Confidence in Care programme and 
PACE model. It will also focus on working across all the child care teams and 
with partner agencies to prevent placements from breaking down. 

Action 7. More choice for children 16 years and over in relation to supported 
living arrangements. This is an alternative to using foster placements when 
young people are approaching independent living and will assist them in their 
transition to adulthood. It is an active choice and not a means to direct 
children out of, or away from care, when they have needs which require the 
higher level of support that fostering offers.

Tudalen 33



8

Appendix 1

Carmarthenshire Recruitment and Retention Strategy 2016 - 2019

Aims and Objectives of Strategy

 Review what’s working well and what we are worried about.

 Analysis of trends which informs of how, when, who, what and where we 
recruit over the next year.

 Maximize the number of fostered children who can be placed in 
Carmarthenshire.

 Reduce the use of Independent Fostering Agencies.

 Help us understand the needs of children who require placements.

 Sets targets that are SMART or sets recommendations for creating more 
resources.

 Ensure we are recruiting foster carers with the right skills and abilities to 
meet the needs of children, ensuring that we are focusing on a targeted 
campaign subject to the demands placed on our service and to appropriately 
match children within Carmarthenshire with skilled foster carers in order to 
provide better outcomes for children and achieve placement stability.

 Ensure our recruitment process is as efficient and effective as it can be, with 
a customer focus which ensures that applicants entering the process 
experience a professional service.

 Ensure our recruitment strategy aligns with the overall placement strategy of 
Carmarthenshire and the overall Child & Family Services Business Plan.

 Explore how financially effective Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service is and 
that we are supporting our overall aims and objectives.

 Planning and reviewing the support we offer to foster carers and how we 
retain the carers we recruit. 

Tudalen 34



9

How well have we done this year?

Targets 2015-2016

The information below, further explores our targets and approvals during 2015 -2016

Target 20 Approved 10 - Mainstream

Approved – 2 Connected Carers

Parent and Baby - 3 Approved – 1 Short Breaks Carer

The information above reflects that we didn’t meet our recruitment targets during 2015-
2016 with challenges in approving the target numbers of Parent & Baby foster carers and 
foster carers for ages 11+.

In relation to the challenges, further analysis is provided:

Parent & Baby Recruitment Challenges

1.) Level of internal interest established not materialising in as many eligible or interested in 
being assessed for the scheme as was originally forecast. All this evidence is captured and it 
ranges from unsuitability of prospective Foster Carers due to lack of bedroom space or 
concerns such as them being wholly unsuitable to progress to Form F or Skills to Foster.

2.) No specific targeted external advertising campaigns following plans to develop internal 
interest first.

However, although we have failed to recruit the target number of foster carers for the Child 
& Parent scheme by the end of the financial year, we are currently assessing a further  2 
foster carers for the scheme and anticipate that these carers will be approved by the end of 
the next financial year. 

Additional Challenges In Meeting Our Targets

Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service acknowledges that during the initial process, potential 
foster carers can display limited understanding of how fostering might work for them so it can 
be difficult to assess potential or encourage applicants to find out more. To overcome the 
issue of “losing any potential applicants” at the point of the initial phone call, due to lack of 
understanding of how fostering would work for them, the strategy details recommendations, 
including encouraging applicants to attend Carmarthenshire’s intensive 3 day preparation 
training ‘Skills to Foster’ in order to gain a greater understanding of the different fostering 
tasks before making their decision.

The initial assessment is undertaken within 7 working days to ascertain the applicant’s 
suitability and phone calls are followed up with applicants following the distribution of the 
information pack. See flow chart. 

Tudalen 35



10

The Fostering Team are very skilled at matching prospective carers abilities, using their 
previous skills and knowledge and areas of interest to ensure that the assessment process is 
effective and enables the carers to recognise and optimise their inherent skill base.

We experienced a higher than normal de-registration figure in 2014-2015. In this case it is 
imperative that we acknowledge and analyse figures during the year to monitor the number 
of carers that resign or retire as well as those who leave to provide permanent care to children 
through Special Guardianship or adoption.  This should assist our strategy and process to 
undertake a gap analysis of needs to focus on the location, area and skills of carers required 
to be recruited in the future. We are satisfied that we did not directly lose any foster carers 
due to a dissatisfaction with the service and this is evidenced in the information held around 
the reasons why foster carers have left the service. There is evidence however that a small 
number of foster carers are placed on hold due to an allegation  being made against them 
and decide to resign from their role despite allegations being unsubstantiated. 

It is also important to recognise that we have seen a net loss in foster carers between 2013-
2016,. 

Year Target
Mainstream

Approved
Mainstream

Deregistered
Mainstream

2013-2014 20 14 16
2014-2015 20 12 23 
2015 - 2016 20 10 9
Total 60 36 48

During 2014-2015 the number of foster carers who were removed from the approved list 
was higher than previous years. The reason cited is that there were a high number of carers 
on hold for a period of more than 6 months due to a variety of reasons. In reviewing these 
households a higher number of carers left the service.

Between 2014-15 this was significant for the reasons below

13 Households tendered their resignations due to a change in personal circumstances and 
family relationships this includes moving out of the area.

10 households retired some due to bereavement and ill health.

It is significant that there has been a decline in approving mainstream carers between 2015-
2016 and the challenges facing the service are due to a number of issues.

These are partially due to the competitive and economic climate.  There are fewer adults at 
home due to working patterns. The competition of private agencies and neighbouring 
authorities who provide higher allowances is a barrier to recruiting carers. There is evidence 
that in the last year 32 household enquiries for checks were made to Carmarthenshire from 
neighbouring authorities mainly from the Swansea area.

Despite Carmarthenshire providing a marketing and advertising campaign which refers to 
competitive allowances and good support this is an area that requires targeting more 

Tudalen 36



11

through more regular radio advertising locally and clarity around enhanced allowances 
around older children and teenagers.

The National figures also highlight a problem in recruiting foster carers and that the average 
age of a foster care is 55 years.

There is growing evidence at the end of the financial year 2016 that the trends are changing 
again. This relates to the fostering team targeting carers from the private sector to transfer 
over to Carmarthenshire where children have been placed and enquiries have been 
followed up.

2015-2016 Recruitment Performance  

During the financial year 2015-16 the performance information below shows the impact of 
our recruitment activities   Analysis is provided below;

Month Enquiries Approvals by 
household

Approvals by 
placements able to 

provide

De-registrations by 
household

April 9 1 1 0
May 12 4 7 0

June 17 0 1
July 12 0 1
Aug 2 0 0
Sept 9 1 3 0
Oct 3 0 0
Nov 24 1 1 2
Dec 11 2 3 4
Jan 2015 7 1 3 1
Feb 10 0 0
March 14 0 0
Total 130 10

18
9

Approvals: We did not meet our recruitment target of approving 20 foster carers – 
Approved  10 Mainstream, 1 Connected Carers & 1 Short Break Carer this financial year.  In 
spite of not meeting our targets this year, we continue to care for the majority of children 
in-house. 

Fostering journey 

The Fostering Network benchmarking report already referenced suggests that Fostering 
Services are taking on average 9 months to approve a foster carer, from initial enquiry to 
panel. In comparing the journey of those approved with Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service 
experienced a journey time of 4-6 months or less from initial enquiry to approval. In 

Tudalen 37



12

analysing the reasons for a few of the enquiries taking longer than 6 months to be 
approved, the majority is down to applicants request and out of our control such as a 
change of circumstances towards the end of the assessment that has impacted on the ability 
to bring the candidates to Fostering Panel; this still has an impact on our recruitment 
targets. 

In-house provision

Following this year’s activities, our in-house foster carer population now looks like this;

End of March 2016- Total No of Foster Carers – 150;  122 Mainstream Foster Carers which 
includes 5 Parent and Baby providers, 25 Connected Carer (Foster Carers) and 3 Short Break 
Carers.

Between March 2015 and March 2016 - 9 Mainstream Foster Carers were deregistered. 

The 9 households that were deregistered were unavoidable due to reasons as follows.

2 households resigned due to retirement and ill health.

1 household resigned due to them feeling that fostering was not for them.

1 household moved out of the area.

5 households’ circumstances changed due to family issues, health, change of career and 
separation of couple.  

How well do we utilise our in-house provision and what does this mean?

We are clear that around 97 % of our placements are being used. This compares to a 
National average of 69% of placements being utilized (as identified by the Fostering Network 
benchmarking exercise). 

This is further evidence that Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service is providing an efficient in-
house Fostering Service. E.g. Despite a net loss of foster carers this year and a reduction in 
the numbers of LAC we have continued to provide placements available for children in 
Carmarthenshire. The aim is to further reduce the number of children in foster placements 
provided by Independent Fostering Agencies and is supporting the continuing change of the 
balance of care. 

Year Number of children in foster 
care that are placed in-
house

Number of children in foster 
care that are placed with IFA 
carers

March 2015 184 (includes 41 Connected) 6

March 2016 166 (includes 34 Connected) 7

Tudalen 38



13

What do others think about how well we recruit?

It is clear that currently Carmarthenshire is struggling to recruit foster carers for teenagers 
and currently we have three young people in an independent Fostering Agency.

This is essential information and in 2016 the Fostering Service undertook a consultation 
exercise with the wider Child and Family Service in Carmarthenshire to assess their views on 
what is working well within Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service, any worries they have and 
the next step to address any deficits in the service provided for Looked After Children in 
Carmarthenshire.

Current representation is taken from the Annual Inspection Report 2015, social work 
comments provided for foster carer annual reviews, comments from Child Care Team 
Managers, Independent Reviewing Officer and children themselves and some key messages 
about what is working well and feedback include:

‘Engagement and Participation has a strong foundation in Carmarthenshire’. 

CSSIW Inspection Report 2015.

‘Carmarthenshire has some fantastic foster carers’ (Child Care Team Manager)

‘They (foster carers)  have provided excellent support on both a practical and emotional level 
and have provided a very high level of care for ‘S’ and have shown a great understanding of 
her needs on both and emotional and practical level (child with extremely complex learning 
needs within a mainstream placement) Child Care Team Social Worker

She feels settled and safe ( young person aged 16) and D (foster carer) works extremely well 
with the Department, is open and honest and keeps me informed at all times about any 
changes to L’s plan. (Child Care Team Social Worker)

Both B and K (foster carers) have embraced the boys into their home since they were placed 
with them.  They have encouraged their development and have ensured the boys have the 
stimulation and attention that they require (Child Care Team Social Worker)

‘I have to say, the care provided to these children is amazing and R and J are taking fantastic 
care of them all.  I had to phone you and let you know’ (Child Care Team Manager in respect 
of a sibling group of four children placed together).

Carmarthenshire has some excellent carers (IRO)

J keeps me safe and I am happy here (child)

We have been very pleased with this placement and have valued everything that J and D 
have done for us all whilst being here (Parents who were assessed in one of our Parent and 
Baby placements).

However there are areas in which we need to improve such as in:

“Lack of suitable placement options for teenagers” IRO

‘These carers just don’t get it’ Child Care Social Worker

Tudalen 39



14

Next steps;

“We need a strategy to recruit and support Teenagers who are going through crisis in their 
lives” Child Care Team Manager

“More carers who really get teenagers and are willing to stick with it through the ups and 
downs” (foster carer who enjoys looking after teenagers)

“If I was supported financially I would love to be able to give up work and provide support for 
more teenagers, I love this work, but I’m limited because my wife and I both work full time.  
We feel we have so much more to offer”

We need to have a robust and financially rewarding package of support for foster carers 
who are willing and have the necessary skills to support some of our more complex children 
in Carmarthenshire to ensure that we do not have to use Independent Fostering Agencies

What do children in our placements say about the recruitment of foster carers?

Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service consult with children/young people in our placements 
using a number of methods.

Historically, Carmarthenshire has consulted with children/young people about the qualities 
they want from good foster carers and Looked after children are always consulted as part of 
a foster carer annual review and through regular LAC reviews and in participation groups. 

More recent feedback received from young people in relation to what they want from foster 
carers includes things such as; ‘fun,’ ‘being interested in me’, ‘being honest with me’, a good 
laugh’, ‘keeping my confidence’, energetic and fun on the weekends’, understanding and 
knowing what I’ve been through’. This information is being incorporated in the assessment 
process and within the preparation training.  

What do our applicants say about the process to become a foster carer with the Local 
Authority?

Although Fostering Panel questionnaires are sent to applicants to complete when they come 
to the end of their journey to become a foster carer once they are approved there needs to 
be a more robust method of gathering the qualitative data which will be essential to look at 
how we further develop our recruitment and assessment service

Areas to improve

The Fostering Service needs to ensure that feedback received via questionnaires sent out to 
newly approved foster carers is collated in order to ensure that quantitative and qualitative 
data can be analysed in order to identify the applicants experience throughout the various 
stages of the process.  This would include:

 Their experience of the very first discussion with a social worker within the Fostering 
Service.

 Rapid follow up of initial enquiries backed up with phone call and visit planned 
within 5 working days.

Tudalen 40



15

 Their experience of the initial home visit

 The quality of the information provided (Information Pack)

 Their experience of the length of time it took to complete the pre-approval 
process/assessment

 The quality of communication during this process

 The experience of attending Fostering Panel

 What our applicants say about the Skills to Foster training

The Fostering Service also need to capture what applicants report about their experience of 
contacting Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service and why they initial chose to do so. This is a 
vital aspect of our Recruitment campaign.

2014-2015 2015-2016
Initial Enquiries 145 130
Approved 12 Mainstream 10 Mainstream

What do our foster carers say about recruitment?

In 2015 we established a Foster Carer Recruitment Focus Group where all approved carers 
were invited to participate in the development of the Recruitment Service.  

The Fostering Service has consulted with young people in order to illicit their views on how 
we can improve the recruitment of foster carers in Carmarthenshire, particularly focussing 
on the skills and knowledge that are required to best support vulnerable young people in 
Carmarthenshire and offer the best quality of care.

Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service consult with foster carer mentors on a regular basis and 
regularly hold six weekly consultations where we plan and review our recruitment 
campaign.

Carmarthenshire Fostering Service has a dedicated number of foster carers who support our 
recruitment activities each year and recommend that people contact Carmarthenshire’s 
Fostering Service due to the positive experiences they have received as foster carers. 

Word of Mouth continues to be one of the strongest sources of enquiries and this year 
foster carers have supported recruitment activities including getting involved with things 
such as; writing blogs and experiential testimonies for the website, participating in  
interviews and giving their story to the local paper.

Tudalen 41



16

Our foster carers are involved in meeting and greeting new applicants in their roles as 
Mentors and are an important part of our ‘Skills to Foster’ preparation training, sharing their 
experiences of fostering as well as speaking to members of the public in the community.

Currently we have five dedicated and experienced foster carers who support 
Carmarthenshire’s recruitment process by holding ‘Fostering Recruitment Surgeries’ within 
several locations across Carmarthenshire.

One of our foster carers also takes on the role of ‘Cal’ our Fostering Mascot who is visible at 
all our major recruitment events across the County.

It is most beneficial to have this dedicated support as these foster carers are able to give 
their honest opinion of what it is like to foster for Carmarthenshire.  Word of mouth is vital 
for our current recruitment strategy and the enthusiasm and dedication of the carers 
involved in this process cannot be underestimated. 

In 2015 several foster carers were involved in a recruitment and information sharing event 
for individuals who were thinking of becoming foster carers. 

Analysis of IFA use during 2014 /2015 and 2015/ 2016

The table below provides further information in relation to the number of children placed in 
IFA placements during 2014-2015 -

2014-2015
6

2015-2016
7

From analysing the information we are still able to meet and offer placements to the 
majority of children in our in house placements. It is accepted however that a factor relating 
to this may be due to the LAC population having declined and that there are placements 
available to children under 10. However a recruitment target is to focus on young people 
aged over 10 and requires a more dedicated and robust strategy to recruit foster carers to 
meet the needs of the service. The targeted group will be for the more complex and 
challenging teenagers and alongside this to recruit foster carers to provide support to these 
challenging placements as this has proved effective in the past to support placement 
stability.

The appointment of a senior practitioner dedicated to supporting and working with 
teenager placements within the service should provide a more robust and strategic process 
for recruiting and maintaining placement stability and retention of carers.

This analysis is also related to the number of in house placement breakdowns in 2015-16 in 
the age group 10 plus .Overall analysis of the service requires a more robust resource to 

Tudalen 42



17

work alongside the preventative services and support young people to remain at home. The 
provision of the new Accommodation Panel and Resource Panel has supported the 
preventative strategy and acted as a gate keeping process to ensure children are only 
accommodated under reasonable and appropriate circumstances.

We are aware from analysis in 2015-16 that there are a group of teenagers with highly 
complex and additional needs that have suffered a series of placement breakdowns and 
some requiring more specialised resources in addition to foster care. We cannot 
underestimate the effects this has on our foster care provision in house in respect of 
matching although we have had some success of children returning to in house placements 
from IFA provision.  

Recruitment targets 2016 - 2019 and how this fits with the overall strategy

The recruitment targets identified for 2016-2019 are based on current service need and 
reflect that although the number of looked after children has decreased, referrals and 
requests for older children to be accommodated is in demand.

Placement Type Total number of foster carers 

Child & Parent 6

Support Respite Care (with a focus on 10+ 
and complex needs)

6

Mainstream (with a focus on 10+) 36

Total 48

The targets don’t account for effects of the “When I’m Ready” campaign on retention of 
foster carers which is still unknown, but this may be built into the strategy during the year if 
needed. The service is currently forecasting foster carers this may affect. 

These targets are a reflection of need on the service rather than capacity within the team to 
carry out assessments. 

Recruitment Plan 2016-2019

Campaign Approach

Our recruitment strategy during 2016-2019 considers the recommendations from the 
Fostering Network research. 

There is clearly a need for more foster carers for specific groups of children, as identified in 
our recruitment target aims. Our recruitment targets for 2016-2019 remain focused on 
attracting more people to care for older young people, children with complex needs and 
Parent and Baby providers. Carmarthenshire has a need for more Short Term Break carers to 

Tudalen 43



18

support children with complex needs and disabilities to remain within their family units 
through the provision of respite packages.

The messages in the current campaign are still relevant, however we will continue to invite 
applicants to attend training where there is clearly some uncertainty or a limited 
understanding around their preferred approval status/age of children they wish to foster.   
There is a general consensus amongst the Fostering Service that applicants do not have a full 
understanding about how becoming a foster carer will work out for them and their families 
at the point of the initial phone call and their views on approval ranges can change as they 
follow through the recruitment process. There is limited financial cost to this approach as the 
trainer costs remain the same irrelevant of numbers attending. 

Due to the fact that in 2016/19 we are likely to lose between two to four sets of foster carers 
per year to Retirement the Recruitment of new Foster Carers is vital.

Campaign Plan

Recruiting foster carers continues to be a year round task. Research tells us that the average 
person considering fostering takes 7 years from the time they initially think about fostering 
to making the decision to contact a Fostering Service.

It is therefore vital that Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service is constantly visible within the 
whole of Carmarthenshire, including towns and rural areas.

The Fostering Service uses various sources of media such as Twitter, Face Book, radio 
campaigns (and weekly radio adverts that go out at peak times), fostering information 
surgeries within Carmarthen, Ammanford and Llanelli, advertisements on fleet vans within 
the local authority and newspaper and magazine advertisements.

Carmarthenshire Fostering Service takes part in Fostering Fortnight in May/June each year

Communicating the Campaign 

Methods used to communicate the campaign during 2015-2016 have focussed on the 
highest performing methods during 2014-2015. 

1. Radio

Advertising with the local radio station has always been one of the biggest advertising costs 
to the service in Carmarthenshire; however, it is important that the message about fostering 
for Carmarthenshire reaches a wide audience across the county and beyond.

More money is required to be spent on local radio advertising throughout the year to 
compete with our neighbouring authority.

The Fostering Service liaises with Carmarthenshire’s Communication's team to ensure 
investments with key players in the local media e.g. Scarlet FM/Radio Carmarthenshire 
Swansea Sound, The Wave, Carmarthen Journal and The Primary Times represent good 
value for money for our council departments advertising with them. Our contracts with 
these providers will therefore not be renewed or re-negotiated unless we have discussed 

Tudalen 44



19

the cost and effectiveness of these methods of advertising, to ensure that we maximize our 
return on investment when using these medias. 

2. Internet

The number of those enquiring to Carmarthenshire who state they found us online has 
increased. During 2014-2015 this did decrease slightly from the previous year however, the 
internet was still one of our biggest sources of enquiries during 2015-2016. 

The way our information is communicated on the CCC website has changed this year, 
following the re-design and development of a new CCC website. The way our information 
can be found and the navigation around the site has changed, along with the way our pages 
look. Visitor numbers to our pages will continue to be monitored.

There is a need to focus on updating the website not only in relation to recruitment but to 
provide clear information about Carmarthenshire’s fostering service and what it can offer. 

3. Word of Mouth 

Word of mouth recruitment, or applicants stating that someone had recommended they 
contact Carmarthenshire Fostering Service, has continued to increase over the last few 
years and offers a huge return on investment, as in real terms, costs very little. The best 
performing "word of mouth recruitment" method during 2014-2015 was recommendations 
by foster carers. 

Foster carer involvement in recruitment activities during 2014-2015 was a key part of the 
campaign and included foster carers being involved with writing blogs and testimonies for 
the website, meeting and sharing experiences with applicants during preparation training as 
well as members of the public at recruitment events/evenings and Fostering Information 
Surgeries. The success of this involvement is not only clear in recruitment terms but also 
acts as an intrinsic reward for foster carers, who benefit from feeling more satisfied, 
involved and valued as well as helping them to develop additional skills. Involving foster 
carers in our recruitment strategy will continue and be furthered developed.  

A potential development to strengthen word of mouth recruitment is the proposal to 
expand the £100 recruitment incentive payment to financially reward those who make 
significant contributions to recruitment, as well as those who recommend someone directly. 
In addition, the strategy will consider the development of non-financial methods to 
recognize the recruitment achievements/contributions of foster carers as well as financial 
methods of rewarding.  

From analysis of enquiry trends it’s clear that very few people who make initial enquiries 
specifically state their source of enquiry as being "social media" (e.g. Facebook or Twitter) 
and this result is also a reflection of national research conducted by the Fostering Network, 
however, a presence on social media does help people to "find us" online and helps direct 
traffic to our website and new Carmarthenshire Fostering Service Facebook page.

Tudalen 45



20

Additional Activities

A number of additional activities and advertising opportunities are used throughout the 
year and contribute to the number of enquiries received, making sure that 
Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service remains visible and ‘live’ within the county and main 
towns of Carmarthenshire. 

Parc Y Scarlets held a recruitment event in October 2015 and this was well attended, 
however we have yet to find a ‘Fostering Champion’ who can head our campaigns.

Currently the fostering allowance budget is under review as this is yet to be featured as part 
of our media campaign and we are in direct competition with our neighbouring authorities 
who award a higher allowance, however might not offer better value.  Carmarthenshire’s 
Fostering Service has awarded carers very favourable financial packages of support, 
however this is not easily translated into advertising campaigns.

This can certainly act as a barrier to recruiting prospective carers as allowances across 
neighbouring authorities are higher than Carmarthenshire and unless this is addressed will 
have a detrimental impact on providing a stable and fluid carer workforce.

How well did we retain foster carers in last 3 years? 

2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016

New Carers 14 12 10

De-Registered 16 23 9

Total No Of 
Carers

132 121 122

Combined Panel Business Report 2013-2016

One of the strengths of Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service is its ability to retain foster 
carers.  Carmarthenshire has not lost any foster carers due to dissatisfaction in the service. 
The majority of foster carers who left the service were de-registered for a number of 
reasons. Several are now offering permanence to children/young people under the auspices 
of SGO permanence plans or resigning due to a number of personal reasons and ill health. 
Between 2014-16, 10 households resulted in SGOs with a further households expected to 
achieve this in the coming years creating permanence for the specific children.

In relation to the connected /kinship carers, 7 young people moved into independent living 
and 2 into a supported lodgings arrangement. Two carers resigned after very short periods 
of fostering for Carmarthenshire, citing that although they received excellent support 
through the assessment process and subsequently from their Supervising Social Worker, 
fostering children was not what they expected.  Consequently further research and timely 
exit interviews are required to be undertaken to identify the reasons why “fostering was not 
what was expected” so we can analysis the findings and develop appropriate next steps. 

Tudalen 46



21

Financial Support

Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service financial package is under review at present. Currently 
Carmarthenshire offers enhanced financial packages of support to those Foster Carers who 
are caring for children with high support needs and young people who are displaying high 
risk behaviours.

Retention Activities

Foster Carers within Carmarthenshire can expect

 A designated Supervising Social Worker

 A Foster Carer Mentor

 24 hour support 

 Additional retention methods have been employed, focusing on valuing foster carers 
and supporting them to develop links with one another and build on professional 
and peer support networks. These activities have been developed following 
recommendations from National research and foster carer consultation

 There are currently two monthly foster carer support groups

 A specialist support group for Foster carers who are newly approved and require 
additional support through their first year post approval.

 In 2016- 2017 we anticipate the development of a ‘Men who Foster’ support group 
and a Connected Carers Group.

Eagerly anticipated Social events throughout the year including Christmas Parties and 
Summer events for all carers and their families.

We are currently reviewing some of the key retention activities provided by 
Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service and this will include a Celebrating Fostering Award 
Ceremony. 

What do our foster carers say about how we support them?

During the Foster Carer Support Groups and CSSIW Inspections over the last two years there 
is a clear message that foster carers within Carmarthenshire are supported and valued.  
When we have consulted with our foster carers and asked them what they think is working 
well within Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service, the majority of comments has related to 
the support offered by Carmarthenshire’s Fostering Service 

Retention Forecast 2016-2019

During 2016 - 2017 we have forecasted that we will de-register 6 foster carers, which is 

Tudalen 47



22

more than what we would "normally" expect to see within the year. However, we need to 
take into account that 25% of our foster carer population is aged 60 years plus and over so 
unexpected de-registrations could also occur. 

Foster Carer Population and Profile

To support and retain our foster carers we need to fully understand our foster carer 
population and profile and understand their motivations and values. 

From analysing the above information, the following areas will be considered during 2016-
2019;

 Recruiting younger foster carers

 More focussed support for our “newly” approved e.g. Within the last 5 years and 
require a high level of support and training 

 There are specific areas in Carmarthenshire that are under-represented in terms of 
locality of foster carers that can be targeted. Further work will be conducted to 
compare this with areas that looked after children are placed in school, to establish 
“geographical gaps”. 

 Targeted approach on an advertising campaign to provide 2-3 placements for 
teenagers with challenging needs alongside the support of the new senior 
practitioner post. This will require a commitment from senior management to 
support a scheme which rewards carers financially alongside packages of individual 
support.

 Recruit and target foster carers for parent and child placements.

 Further develop a respite provision service to recruit and target potential carers to 
match them for supporting placements with high needs to maintain and improve 
placement stability.

 The promotion of sole placements where required for children with complex and 
challenging needs.

 Target local communities that have been more successful in recruiting new carers 
and how this can influence and contribute to planning local campaigns in the future.

Value based approach to support and how well have we done in 2015-2016.

There were 10 foster carers approved in 2015-16 and they provided 14-15 placements 
including sibling groups.

Maintained and provided placements for the majority of children and young people within 
Carmarthenshire and this is reflected in the low numbers of children placed with IFAs.

Tudalen 48



23

Provided placements for sibling groups of children to maintain them together.

Moved several children on successfully to adoption and permanency through the Special 
Guardianship Process.

Established a skilled foster carer workforce to assist in the rehabilitation plans of children 
returning home to the community or family members. 

What do others think? 

How well does the wider service think we meet children's needs?

In addition, during 2016-2019 and in line with the ‘Signs of Safety’ approach in 
Carmarthenshire the Fostering Service will start to develop a new method of getting 
children's views as part of the foster carer annual review process. This involves providing 
children's social workers and supervising social workers with direct work tools to use e.g. 
wizard and fairy, 3 houses, safety house. A children's social worker guide to gathering this 
information will be produced which includes a words and pictures storyboard that can be 
shared with children/young people about why we want their views and their importance. 

What do we need to do and how do we plan this.

To improve placement stability and reduce the number of placement breakdowns by 
strengthening and targeting a more robust support and recruitment campaign.

There is a need to increase the recruitment part of the service by an additional full time 
worker and administrative support needs to be strengthened due to the demands on staff 
time devoted to training and assessment. 

Target and focused advertising campaign to recruit specific carers for teenagers with better 
financial rewards so that we can be transparent in advertising our allowances.

Focus on providing support groups for foster carers and consulting with young people on 
how we shape the service for the future and improve on outcomes for children.

 To continue to focus on responding to initial enquiries within appropriate timescales and 
following up with home visits.

There is evidence to suggest that over the past year 31 sets of carers have been lost to 
neighbouring Swansea due to LA checks being made to Carmarthenshire. There is strong 
evidence that the current allowances disadvantages and lowers the incentive to become 
carers for Carmarthenshire.

Dedicated radio time with local radio stations to advertise and promote fostering on a 
rolling programme basis.

Extra support and training for carers interested in fostering children aged 10 and over in 
order to provide a more skilled workforce.

More support required from our marketing section to target and improve recruitment 

Tudalen 49



24

campaigns.

From analysing this information, we can identify a need to develop a complex needs 
strategy that would better support foster carers and children to maintain stability. In 
addition, with the majority of our foster carer population being approved within the last 5 
years, the strategy might include a more thorough period of induction to ensure new foster 
carers are better prepared to meet the needs of children with more complex needs. 

Recruitment & Retention Budget Spend 2015-2016

When reviewing how we spent our total recruitment budget of £29,706 in 2015-2016, 
around £24,042 was allocated to recruitment/advertising.   Expenditure = £22,326.   

Recruitment and Retention Budget Proposal for 2016-2019 

Total budget 2016-2017 = £24,186 (Allocated to Advertising). This is likely to continue in the 
following two years.

Recruitment focus on all year round advertising with radio and papers.

More focus on online advertising.

Word of Mouth recruitment is successful so to continue to follow up with financial 
incentives.

Information sessions and community based recruitment programmes in areas which have 
been successful in recruiting new carers and learn from this to spread out to other areas 
across the county.

To continue to support and promote activities over the year such as foster walk fostering 
fortnight annual Christmas and fun events in Pembrey etc.

Community engagement with sporting activities development of sponsorships ie Scarlets.

Advertising on vans public places etc.

Overall Analysis

It is imperative that we research and analyse the reasons of why carers are leaving the 
service and from our figures it is clear that many have resigned due to retirement through 
bereavement ill health and change in family circumstances.

A smaller number have left due to fostering not being for them, and therefore we need to 
consider exit strategies as part of our recruitment and retention procedures.

It is recognised that our LAC numbers have fallen and this has assisted the service in 
maintaining children in house.

The target is to focus on recruitment for children aged over 10 and parent and baby 
placement providers and to support these placements, respite carers recruitment.

Tudalen 50



25

The target for 2016-19 has been reviewed and this is to achieve 48 households which will 
focus on the recruitment of specific carers for older teenagers with challenging needs.

The need to continue analysing and reviewing recruitment processes that work well.  

Flow Chart of Initial Enquiry/ Application Form Process

Initial Enquiry Form completed

*
(Ensure form is signed and dated and application packs sent out 1st class by person taking enquiry, 

ensuring that it includes SAE)

*
Pass Completed Initial Enquiry Form to Admin for risk assessment

(on day of enquiry)

*
Initial Enquiry form to be placed in recruitment file by Admin once processed

(in Recruitment filing cupboard)

*
Recruitment representative to attend placement meeting or provide written information to meeting 

to discuss Initial Enquiries received the previous week and inform team about new Form F 
assessments, needing allocation

*
If application not returned Recruitment Team to undertake follow up phone calls to interested 

parties within 7 days of Initial Enquiry .Offer of home visit to be suggested – subject to the return of 
application form 

(record /date on Initial enquiry monitoring form when phone call undertaken) 

*
Once application forms received by office, passed to Sue John Evans for allocation - within 7 working 

days

*
CCC Checks to be undertaken by Admin once applications received

Tudalen 51



26

(Admin to date stamp and input information on to the spreadsheet) 

*
Social worker to complete Initial Interview report with Applicants

(template on council file plan) 

*
Completed Initial Interview report to be passed to 

Recruitment Assistant Manager for discussion

*
Applicants to be notified by social worker completing the report whether they will progress to Skills 

to Foster training and if not the reasons why application will not proceed.

* 

File to pass back to Admin to place details on list for next Skills to Foster training

(Skills to Foster Box File) 

Tudalen 52



27

Appendix 2a

A council that removed children from a foster placement without showing it had considered 
their best interests has been criticised by the local government ombudsman.

An investigation found Sandwell council failed to demonstrate it had fully weighed up the 
options when removing two children, aged six and seven, from their beds 90 minutes after 
police told the authority their foster carer was going to be arrested.

The serious allegations made against the foster carer, who was the sole carer for the children, 
were later decided by police to be “unfounded and malicious”, according to the ombudsman’s 
report into the council’s management of the case.

The minutes of a Position of Trust meeting, convened when an allegation is made against a 
person who works with children and chaired by a local authority designated officer, described 
Sandwell’s response as “knee-jerk”.

But the ombudsman emphasised the council’s failing was not in removing the children from 
their home in itself but that it had failed to record any assessment or discussion of the 
children’s best interests and was unable to produce any evidence it had considered 
alternative ways of separating them from their carer.

Dr Jane Martin, the local government ombudsman, said: “Essential safeguarding processes 
are in place not to add time and bureaucracy but to ensure children’s welfare is paramount.

“Clearly councils do not take a decision to urgently remove a child from their home lightly, 
however they must be able to demonstrate they have thought about all their options and 
considered the child’s best interests.”

In the Working Together to Safeguard Children guidance, councils are required to hold a 
strategy meeting when taking action to safeguard children. Sandwell did not hold a strategy 
discussion at any point in its handling of the case.

It also failed to carry out its duties under the National Minimum Standards for foster care 
services to provide independent support to people subject to allegations.

The foster carer complained he was not advised of his right to independent support or kept 
informed of the actions and decisions of the council.

He also complained Sandwell failed to return the children to him in the prescribed timescales 
after it was decided the allegations against him were unfounded.

The council has agreed to apologise to the foster carer and pay him £750. It will also 
apologise to the children in age-appropriate language and put £500 for each child into their 
savings accounts for when they leave care.

A copy of the ombudsman report will be placed on their files to help answer any questions 
they may have when they are older.

Tudalen 53

http://www.lgo.org.uk/downloads/CO%20Children's%20services/2015-2016/2236-14-014-480-Sandwell-MBC-13.10.2015.pdf


28

Appendix 2b

Essex council has agreed to pay £1,800 to a family after its decision to remove a girl from her 
aunt and uncle’s care without warning caused “considerable distress”.

The teenage girl, who had moderate learning difficulties, had lived with her aunt and uncle 
since she was a child. She also had respite care provided by her grandparents.

There were difficulties in the home, and she told social workers she was unhappy. The 
council took the decision to place her with new carers but failed to tell the girl, her aunt and 
uncle and grandparents until a social worker turned up at her school to remove her, a Local 
Government Ombudsman investigation found.

The ombudsman said the council had no reason to believe the placement would fail without 
extra support and there was “no evidence” the girl was at immediate risk of significant harm.

The council’s decision to end the placement instead appeared to be based on concerns over 
the uncle’s refusal to allow the girl’s social worker into his house, the ombudsman found.

The council told the ombudsman it had problems working with the couple. The uncle would 
only let her social worker talk to the girl on the doorstep or in the garden as he was concerned 
over the social worker’s “influence” on his other children.

The council told the ombudsman the uncle was “aggressive and non-cooperative”. The 
authority also claimed the aunt failed to attend meetings. Both accusations were denied by the 
pair.

After moving the girl, her social workers did not emphasise her vulnerabilities to her new 
carers, the investigation found. She absconded from their care when they left her 
unsupervised in a park, where she hitched a lift from a stranger back to her aunt and uncle’s 
house.

The girl was eventually returned to her aunt and uncle’s care, where she continued to live 
past her 18th birthday.

The ombudsman also criticised the council’s handling of the family’s complaint.

It recommended Essex should pay £550 to the girl, £850 to her aunt and uncle and £400 to 
her grandparents as remedy for the distress caused. The ombudsman also told the council to 
review decisions about foster care placements it had terminated in the past year to ensure 
correct procedures were followed.

The council agreed to the Ombudsman’s recommendations, and apologised to the family.

Michael King, local government and social care ombudsman, said: “While the young person 
had needs above that of a typical teenager, the council had no reason to believe the placement 
could not have continued given the right support. This is borne out by the fact the teenager is 
still living with her relatives despite being over the age of 18.”

Tudalen 54

http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2017/mar/teenager-removed-from-foster-parents-without-notice-by-essex-county-council
http://www.lgo.org.uk/information-centre/news/2017/mar/teenager-removed-from-foster-parents-without-notice-by-essex-county-council


29
Tudalen 55



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



EDUCATION & CHILDREN
 SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

24th APRIL 2017 

Explanation for the non-submission 
of scrutiny report

Behaviour Services Review

Responsible Officer(s):  

Explanation: 

Revised Submission Date:

Aeron Rees

Work is still being undertaken in this area 
and it will be more beneficial for the 
Committee to receive an update when the 
work has been further progressed.

This report will now be scheduled into the 
Committee’s Forward Work Progarmme for 
2017/18. 

Tudalen 57

Eitem Rhif  6



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT 
15 MAWRTH 2017

Yn bresennol: Y Cynghorydd J.E.Williams (Cadeirydd)

Cynghorwyr: D.J.R. Bartlett, C.A. Campbell, J.M. Charles, I.W. Davies, W.G. 
Hopkins, P. Hughes-Griffiths, A. James, M.J.A. Lewis, D.W.H. 
Richards

Mrs. V. Kenny – Cynrychiolydd o’r Eglwys Gatholig Rufeinig 
Mrs. E. Heyes – Rhiant-lywodraethwr (Ardal Llanelli) 
Mrs. K. Hill – Rhiant-lywodraethwr (Ardal Dinefwr) 
Mrs. A. Pickles – Rhiant-lywodraethwr (Ardal Caerfyrddin)  

Hefyd yn bresennol:

Y Cynghorydd D.M. Jenkins – Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Adnoddau 
Y Cynghorydd G.O.Jones – Yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Addysg a Phlant 

Roedd y swyddogion canlynol yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod:

Mr. G. Morgans – Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro
Mr. A. Morgan – Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion
Mr. S. Smith – Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant 
Mr. D. Astins – Rheolwr Datblygu Strategol 
Mr. S. Davies – Rheolwr y Rhaglen Foderneiddio
Mr. D. Jones – Rheolwr Cyllid Ysgolion
Mr. M. Hughes – Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd  

Lleoliad: Siambr Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin (10:00 – 11:35yb) 

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB 

Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd J.D. James a Mrs. J. 
Voyle Williams (Cynrychiolydd yr Eglwys yng Nghymru). 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU PERSONOL 

Y Cynghorydd Rhif y 
Cofnod(ion)

Y Math o Fuddiant

A. James Eitem 7 Mae’n llywodraethwr yn Ysgol 
Gynradd Gymunedol Llangadog. 

Tudalen 59

Eitem Rhif  7



3. DATGAN CHWIP WAHARDDEDIG

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch chwipiaid y pleidiau. 

4. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD 

Nid oedd cwestiynau gan y cyhoedd wedi dod i law. 

5. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi’r eitem ar gyfer y dyfodol a oedd i’w 
hystyried yn y cyfarfod nesaf ddydd Llun, 24ain Ebrill 2017.

6. CATEGOREIDDIO YSGOLION 2017  

Ystyriodd y Pwyllgor Adroddiad Cryno Cenedlaethol ar Gategoreiddio ar gyfer 
Ysgolion Sir Gaerfyrddin gyda golwg ar y flwyddyn academaidd 2016/17. Roedd y 
wybodaeth a amlinellwyd yn yr adroddiad yn tynnu sylw at sefyllfa bresennol ysgolion 
y Sir yn ogystal â mannau i’w gwella.   

Codwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr adroddiad:

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch p’un a oedd yna ddigon o Ymgynghorwyr Her yn 
Sir Gaerfyrddin, roedd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion yn cydnabod fod yna 
brinder gan mai dim ond chwe swyddog oedd yn nhîm craidd Sir Gaerfyrddin ar y 
pryd. Fodd bynnag, cymerwyd camau i fynd i’r afael â’r diffyg trwy gomisiynu 
penaethiaid a oedd yn gweithredu fel Ymgynghorwyr Her ychwanegol. Roedd yr 
unigolion hyn i gyd yn cael yr un hyfforddiant er mwyn sicrhau cysondeb ar draws y 
gwasanaeth. Cynghorwyd y Pwyllgor y byddai yna ymgynghorydd ychwanegol yn 
ymuno â’r Awdurdod ar ôl y Pasg a bod yna fwriad i recriwtio ymhellach ar gyfer yr 
haf.  

Cyfeiriwyd at ymweliad y Pwyllgor ag ysgol yn ddiweddar lle’r oedd tri ymgynghorydd 
her gwahanol wedi ymweld â’r Pennaeth mewn un flwyddyn, gyda phob un ohonynt 
yn rhoi cyngor gwahanol. Mynegwyd pryder felly ynghylch diffyg cysondeb y cyngor 
a’r heriau a roddir i ysgolion. Roedd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion yn cydnabod 
fod newidiadau o ran Ymgynghorydd Her wedi digwydd gyda rhai ysgolion o 
ganlyniad i newid yn nhrefniadau’r Tîm Craidd / Comisiynu. Ychwanegodd fod y 
swyddogion yn parhau i sicrhau cysondeb ar draws eu gwaith, a bod cynnal 
digwyddiadau hyfforddi ar y cyd yn rheolaidd yn gymorth mawr yn hyn o beth. Yn 
ogystal, mae ysgolion bellach yn gweithio’n effeithiol mewn amgylchedd 
‘hunanwella’. Er enghraifft, mae nifer o ‘Ysgolion Gwyrdd’ yn darparu cymorth i’w 
cydweithwyr fel rhan o gynnwys ‘dewislen gymorth’ ERW. Ychwanegodd fod rhai 
Ymgynghorwyr Her, yn anffodus, wedi gorfod cael eu hadleoli er mwyn cefnogi ein 
hysgolion. Mae hyn o ganlyniad i swyddi gwag yn y tîm craidd. 

Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch sut y penderfynid ac y cytunid ar gategori ysgol. 
Atgoffodd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion y Pwyllgor fod categori ysgol yn cael 
ei bennu yn dilyn Ymweliad Craidd cyntaf y flwyddyn academaidd a thrafodaethau 
rhwng yr ymgynghorydd her, y pennaeth, y corff llywodraethu a’r uwch dîm rheoli. 
Roedd yr ysgolion yn cael eu hannog i awgrymu pa gategori cymorth oedd yn briodol 

Tudalen 60



i’w sefyllfa yn eu barn hwy, a byddai hyn yn cael ei drafod a’i herio ymhellach gan 
Ymgynghorwyr Her wrth ymgynghori â’r partïon perthnasol. Byddai pawb a oedd yn 
rhan o’r broses yn cytuno ar y categori terfynol, a lle byddai yna anghytuno, byddai 
hyn yn cael ei gofnodi’n swyddogol mewn adroddiad. Atgoffodd y Pwyllgor hefyd y 
gallai ffactorau allanol cenedlaethol (e.e. perfformiad dysgwyr sy’n gymwys i gael 
prydau ysgol am ddim) effeithio ar y categori cymorth terfynol lle’r oedd ysgol yn cael 
ei rhoi.  

Mewn ymateb i awgrym bod yna ddwy adran addysg yn gweithio yn Sir Gaerfyrddin 
mewn gwirionedd, sef Gwasanaeth Gwella Ysgolion ERW ar y naill law ac Adran 
Addysg yr Awdurdod ar y llaw arall, dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro fod y swyddogaeth gwella ysgolion wedi’i chomisiynu 
gan ERW ac felly nad oedd yna unrhyw ddyblygu. Nid oedd gan yr Awdurdod 
swyddogion gwella ysgolion ar wahân.  Ychwanegodd fod y trefniadau o fewn ERW 
yn caniatáu perthynas waith lawer agosach rhwng swyddogion y ddau sefydliad.  

Mynegwyd pryder fod y pwysau a brofir gan ysgolion uwchradd er mwyn cyrraedd y 
categorïau cymorth uwch (sydd â chysylltiadau cryfion â chanlyniadau arholiadau) yn 
arwain at fod rhai ysgolion yn cyflwyno disgyblion i sefyll arholiadau TGAU flwyddyn 
ymlaen llaw a bod hyn yn rhoi pwysau gormodol ac annheg ar y disgyblion.    
Awgrymwyd y gallai disgyblion gyflawni canlyniadau llawer gwell o gael astudio am 
ddwy flynedd lawn yn hytrach na chael eu gorfodi i astudio’r cwricwlwm cyfan mewn 
un flwyddyn. Roedd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion yn cydnabod pryder y 
Pwyllgor a nododd fod yr union fater hwn wedi cael ei drafod gan ERW. Roedd yn 
cytuno y dylai’r broses fod yn ymwneud â sicrhau bod disgyblion yn gallu gwneud eu 
gorau ac mai eu cyflawniad hwy oedd y ffactor pwysicaf, ac nid safle categori’r ysgol.  
Dywedodd fod ysgolion effeithiol yn olrhain cynnydd disgyblion unigol yn rheolaidd 
dros ddwy flynedd y cwrs ac y dylid defnyddio’r arfer o gael disgyblion i sefyll 
arholiadau’n gynnar fel offeryn diagnostig i gynorthwyo’r dysgwyr. Ychwanegodd fod 
Ysgrifennydd Cabinet Llywodraeth Cymru dros Addysg wedi mynegi pryderon yn 
ddiweddar ynghylch yr arfer o gael disgyblion i sefyll arholiadau’n gynnar ar lefel 
genedlaethol. Roedd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro hefyd 
yn cydnabod pryderon y Pwyllgor a rhoddodd sicrwydd i’r aelodau ei fod wedi bod yn 
trafod y mater hwn gydag ysgolion uwchradd unigol yn ystod y misoedd diwethaf. 
Nododd yr Aelod o’r Bwrdd Gweithredol dros Addysg a Phlant fod Llywodraeth Cymru 
yn flaenorol wedi cynnwys rhifedd a mathemateg o fewn y data perfformiad L2i a bod 
hyn wedi arwain at fod ysgolion yn teimlo bod pwysau arnynt i gyflwyno disgyblion ar 
gyfer arholiadau yn gynharach na’r hyn sy’n arferol. Roedd hyn bellach wedi cael ei 
newid i naill ai rhifedd neu fathemateg felly roedd disgwyl y byddai’r arfer hwn yn 
lleihau. 

Gofynnwyd p’un a oedd perfformiad disgyblion mewn unedau anghenion addysgol 
arbennig yn cael ei ystyried wrth benderfynu ar gategorïau cymorth ysgolion 
uwchradd. Cadarnhaodd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion fod hyn yn digwydd 
wrth ddiffinio’r ‘Grŵp Safonau’ cenedlaethol. Dywedodd wrth y Pwyllgor hefyd, tra 
bod perfformiad dysgwyr Cyfnod Allweddol 4 sydd yn gymwys i dderbyn prydau ysgol 
am ddim wedi dylanwadu ar bedwar o’r categorïau ysgolion uwchradd, ei bod hi’n 
bwysig cofio bod y categorïau’n ymwneud â’r cymorth sydd ei angen ar ysgolion er 
mwyn cyflawni safonau gwell.  

Nodwyd ei bod hi’n ymddangos bod yna gryn wahaniaeth rhwng y graffiau sy’n 
dangos y gwelliannau a wnaed gan ysgolion cynradd a’r rheiny yn y sector uwchradd. 
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Effeithiolrwydd Ysgolion ei bod hi’n ymddangos felly ond bod 
hyn oherwydd bod 12 ysgol uwchradd yn cael eu cymharu â thros gant o ysgolion 

Tudalen 61



cynradd.  Atgoffodd y Pwyllgor eto mai’r mater pwysig oedd y cymorth a oedd yn dod 
gyda’r gwahanol gategorïau ac y gallai ysgolion, yn lleol, symud i fyny neu i lawr 
categori yn dibynnu ar y mesurau y gallai ysgol fod wedi’u rhoi ar waith yn ystod y 
flwyddyn. Er efallai na fyddai hyn yn cael ei adlewyrchu’n genedlaethol, ar lefel leol 
roedd y swyddogion yn gweithio’n agos gyda’r ysgolion i gefnogi’r agenda gwella.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.   

7. ADRODDIAD MONITRO CYLLIDEB REFENIW A CHYLLIDEB GYFALAF 2016/17  

Roedd y Cynghorydd A. James wedi datgan buddiant yn gynharach sef ei fod yn 
llywodraethwr yn Ysgol Gynradd Gymunedol Llangadog.

Bu’r Pwyllgor yn ystyried Adroddiad Monitro Cyllideb Refeniw a Chyllideb Gyfalaf y 
flwyddyn ariannol 2016/17 fel yr oeddynt ar 31ain Rhagfyr 2016 ar gyfer yr Adran 
Addysg a Phlant. Cynghorwyd fod yr adroddiad ar y pryd yn dynodi gorwariant diwedd 
blwyddyn posibl o £1,767,000 yn ei gyllideb refeniw a bod y rhaglen gyfalaf yn dangos 
amrywiant net o -£6,550,000 yn erbyn cyllideb gymeradwy 2016/17.

Codwyd y materion canlynol wrth ystyried yr adroddiad:

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y costau parhaus sy’n gysylltiedig ag ymddeoliad 
cynnar gwirfoddol a dileu swyddi i athrawon, rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a 
Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro wybod i’r Pwyllgor fod y swyddogion yn ystod y 
misoedd diwethaf wedi bod yn gweithio ar drefniadau newydd i gynorthwyo ysgolion 
mewn perthynas â’r mater hwn, gan gynnwys adolygu’r polisïau perthnasol. 
Sefydlwyd Panel a fyddai’n cynnwys swyddogion o’r adran Adnoddau Dynol, y 
Gwasanaethau Ariannol a’r Adran Addysg a Phlant. Byddai’r Panel yn cael ei gadeirio 
gan y Cyfarwyddwr a’i nod oedd herio a chynorthwyo ysgolion mewn perthynas ag 
ailstrwythuro, rhyddhau staff a gwneud defnydd effeithlon o’u cyllidebau.  Gwnaed 
gwaith ychwanegol hefyd i gasglu data ar strwythurau staffio ysgolion. Yn y tymor 
hwy, roedd yr adran am ddatblygu polisi adleoli ar gyfer ysgolion a fyddai’n ei gwneud 
yn ofynnol i gyrff llywodraethu ystyried athrawon sydd mewn perygl o golli eu swyddi 
(oherwydd cau ysgolion er enghraifft) a’r defnydd posibl o gymhellion ariannol ar gyfer 
ysgolion sy’n derbyn staff a oedd mewn perygl o golli eu swyddi o ysgolion eraill.  

Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch y swydd seicolegydd addysg sydd yn wag, 
dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro na fyddai’r swydd 
yn cael ei hail-lenwi yn dilyn ymddeoliad y swyddog er mwyn gallu gwneud arbedion 
effeithlonrwydd. Fodd bynnag, pwysleisiodd na fyddai hyn yn effeithio ar y 
ddarpariaeth gan y byddai’r ffyrdd newydd o weithio a fabwysiadwyd yng ngoleuni’r 
Bil Anghenion Dysgu Ychwanegol a’r Tribiwnlys Addysg (Cymru) diweddar yn lliniaru 
unrhyw effaith sy’n gysylltiedig â cholli’r swydd hon. 

Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch y strategaethau a ddatblygir i sicrhau 
cynaliadwyedd y Gwasanaeth Cerdd yn y tymor hir.  Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro wybod i’r Pwyllgor fod y swyddogion yn 
ceisio ailfodelu’r gwasanaeth yng ngoleuni argymhellion Donaldson gan y gallai 
ysgolion eithrio o gaffael gwasanaethau dysgu cerdd, a oedd yn rhoi’r gwasanaeth 
mewn sefyllfa fregus ar adeg pryd yr oedd cyllidebau’n cael eu lleihau. Un datblygiad 
allweddol fyddai defnyddio’r athrawon teithiol i ddysgu offerynnau cerdd yn ogystal â 
darparu cymorth cwricwlwm ar gyfer elfen ‘greadigol’ cwricwlwm y dyfodol, fel yr 
argymhellwyd yn Adolygiad Donaldson.  Roedd Llywodraeth Cymru hefyd yn sefydlu 

Tudalen 62



cronfa waddol ar gyfer gwasanaethau cerdd i gydnabod y pwysau ariannol a brofir 
gan awdurdodau lleol ond ni dderbyniwyd rhagor o fanylion hyd yma.   

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch y cynnig i ddatblygu adeilad newydd ar gyfer 
Ysgol Gymraeg Dewi Sant yn Llanelli, rhoddodd Rheolwr y Rhaglen Foderneiddio 
wybod i’r Pwyllgor mai’r safle a gaiff ei ffafrio gan yr Awdurdod yw Caeau Chwarae 
Llannerch, sydd gerllaw lleoliad presennol yr ysgol. Roedd yn cydnabod bod yna beth 
gwrthwynebiad lleol i’r datblygiad arfaethedig ond y byddai’r ymarfer ymgynghori cyn-
cynllunio yn rhoi cyfle i’r holl bartïon sydd â diddordeb i gyflwyno eu sylwadau a lleisio 
eu pryderon yn ffurfiol. Byddai angen cynnal yr ymarfer ymgynghori cyn i’r Awdurdod 
geisio caniatâd cynllunio ar gyfer y datblygiad. 

Mynegwyd pryder ynghylch yr oedi parhaus o ran datblygu cyfleusterau ysgolion 
cynradd newydd yn Rhydaman, yn ogystal â’r arian nas gwariwyd mewn prosiectau 
Band A eraill megis Llangadog.  Roedd Rheolwr y Rhaglen Foderneiddio yn 
cydnabod y pryderon ac yn cytuno bod angen ad-drefnu’r ddarpariaeth gynradd yn 
ardal tref Rhydaman, ynghyd â chael cyfleusterau newydd.  Atgoffodd y Pwyllgor fod 
yr Awdurdod wedi gorfod defnyddio ei holl gyllid ar gyfer prosiectau Band A erbyn 
2019 ond oherwydd y newid mewn demograffeg a’r cynlluniau adfywio ar gyfer y dref, 
y byddai’n annhebygol y byddai prosiect Rhydaman wedi cael ei gwblhau erbyn yr 
amser hwn. Dyma oedd y sefyllfa mewn ardaloedd eraill o’r Sir ac felly roedd 
prosiectau eraill wedi cael eu blaenoriaethu o flaen prosiectau megis Rhydaman er 
mwyn lleihau’r risg o golli’r cyllid. Fodd bynnag, rhoddodd sicrwydd i’r aelodau fod y 
gwaith o ddatblygu cynigion a dod o hyd i dir addas yn Rhydaman, ochr yn ochr â 
swyddogion o’r Is-adran Adfywio a Pholisi, yn mynd rhagddo.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.   

8. ADRODDIAD MONITRO PERFFORMIAD CYNLLUN GWELLA 2016/17: 
CHWARTER 3 - 1AF EBRILL TAN 31AIN RHAGFYR 2016

Derbyniodd y Pwyllgor yr Adroddiad ar Berfformiad Cynllun Gwella 2016/17 er mwyn 
craffu arno ar gyfer Chwarter 3 gyda golwg ar y camau gweithredu a’r mesurau sy’n 
berthnasol i’w faes gorchwyl.

Rhoddwyd sylw i’r cwestiynau/materion canlynol wrth drafod yr adroddiad:

Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch y prinder staff sydd yn rhwystr i ddarparu’r 
gwasanaeth ymwelwyr iechyd Dechrau’n Deg. Rhoddodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Plant wybod i’r Pwyllgor fod yna brinder ymwelwyr iechyd yn genedlaethol a bod y 
rheiny sydd wedi cael eu recriwtio hefyd yn gweithredu o fewn gwasanaethau’r Bwrdd 
Iechyd ac felly bod hyn yn cyfyngu ar eu gallu i godi cymaint o lwythi gwaith yn yr 
ardaloedd Dechrau’n Deg.

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch dyfodol y rhaglen Dechrau’n Deg, nododd 
Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant ei bod yn parhau i fod yn rhaglen flaenllaw ar gyfer 
Llywodraeth Cymru, ac er bod y cyllid ond yn cael ei gadarnhau flwyddyn ar ôl 
blwyddyn, nad oedd hi’n ymddangos fod dyfodol y rhaglen ei hun dan fygythiad 
uniongyrchol. 

Gofynnwyd am eglurhad ynghylch yr oedi a achoswyd gan ddiffyg presenoldeb mewn 
apwyntiadau Seicoleg Addysg.  Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau 
Plant Dros Dro y gallai hyn fod oherwydd rhieni nad ydynt yn dod i apwyntiadau neu 

Tudalen 63



gyfarfodydd yn cael eu canslo oherwydd nad yw gweithwyr proffesiynol eraill yn gallu 
dod iddynt. Roedd achosion o fethu â derbyn adroddiadau oddi wrth ymarferwyr y 
Bwrdd Iechyd hefyd yn arwain at ganslo cyfarfodydd ac oedi yn y broses o ganlyniad.   

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch model systematig yr Uned Plant a Theuluoedd o 
weithio ar draws y timau gwasanaethau plant, rhoddodd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau 
Plant y wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i’r Pwyllgor ynghylch cyflwyno’r dull newydd yn 
Nhimau Gofal Plant yr Awdurdod. Ychwanegodd, er bod y cam gweithredu hwn yn 
unol â’r targed, fod y gwaith o gyflwyno hyn wedi tynnu sylw at yr angen am weithwyr 
penodol mewn meysydd arbennig, a bod camau’n cael eu cymryd i fynd i’r afael â 
hyn.   

Gofynnwyd am ragor o wybodaeth ynglŷn â gwaith y Panel Pobl Ifanc Agored i Niwed 
yn y dyfodol. Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro 
wybod i’r Pwyllgor fod y Panel yn cwrdd bob chwarter gyda’r nod o gydlynu cymorth 
i bobl ifanc agored i niwed yng Nghyfnod Allweddol 4. Trafodwyd papur yn ymwneud 
â datblygu gwaith y Panel hwn ar gyfer y dyfodol gan y Tîm Rheoli Adrannol ym mis 
Ionawr 2017 ac roedd gwaith pellach yn awr yn cael ei wneud i sicrhau bod dysgwyr 
o’r fath yn ennill cymwysterau.   

Mewn ymateb i gwestiwn ynghylch penodi Rheolwr Ymddygiad a Phresenoldeb, 
cadarnhaodd y Cyfarwyddwr Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro fod strwythur 
newydd ar gyfer y maes gwasanaeth hwn wedi cael ei gytuno ac y byddai’r broses 
recriwtio ar gyfer y swydd hon yn dechrau’n fuan.  

Gofynnwyd am ragor o fanylion ynglŷn â’r anawsterau a geir wrth recriwtio gofalwyr 
maeth yn y Sir.   Nododd Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Plant fod recriwtio gofalwyr 
maeth yn broblem ledled y Deyrnas Unedig a bod yr Awdurdod yn canfod ei fod yn 
cystadlu â’r sector preifat a chydag awdurdodau cyfagos fel ei gilydd.  Roedd y 
lwfansau a oedd yn cael eu cynnig gan awdurdodau eraill yn y rhanbarth yn fwy 
cystadleuol na rhai Sir Gaerfyrddin, ac er nad lwfansau o anghenraid yw prif 
ystyriaeth darpar ofalwr, roedd yn aml yn ddigon i ddylanwadu ar benderfyniad 
gofalwr posibl mewn rôl a oedd ar brydiau yn anodd ei gwneud.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL dderbyn yr adroddiad.   

9. Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU – ADDYSG A PHLANT: Y DIWEDDARAF YNGHYLCH 
CAMAU GWEITHREDU AC ATGYFEIRIADAU

Cyfeiriwyd at Gynllun Strategol Cymraeg Mewn Addysg y Cyngor Sir a gofynnwyd 
p’un a dderbyniwyd adborth oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru. Rhoddodd y Cyfarwyddwr 
Addysg a Gwasanaethau Plant Dros Dro wybod i’r Pwyllgor fod Gweinidog y 
Gymraeg a Dysgu Gydol Oes Llywodraeth Cymru wedi gwneud datganiad i’r 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol ynglŷn â’r ffordd ymlaen ar gyfer y Gymraeg mewn Cynlluniau 
Strategol Addysg.   Roedd y datganiad wedi bod yn sylw cyffredinol ynghylch y 
cynlluniau a dderbyniwyd ac roedd y swyddogion yn disgwyl ymateb manylach gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru maes o law gyda golwg ar gynllun Sir Gaerfyrddin. Cytunodd i 
ddosbarthu manylion ynghylch unrhyw ymateb i’r Pwyllgor.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL nodi’r adroddiad.  

Tudalen 64



10. LLOFNODI BOD COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 
22AIN RHAGFYR 2016 YN GOFNOD CYWIR

Nodwyd bod y Cynghorydd M.J.A. Lewis mewn gwirionedd yn Is-lywydd Cymdeithas 
Ffermwyr Ifanc Sir Gaerfyrddin ac nid Cymdeithas Cymru. 

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn amodol ar y newid uchod, lofnodi cofnodion 
y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 22ain Rhagfyr 2016 yn gofnod cywir.

11. LLOFNODI COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR 26AIN 
IONAWR 2017 YN GOFNOD CYWIR

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL lofnodi cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 
26ain Ionawr 2017 yn gofnod cywir.

12. DERBYN COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR Y CYD RHWNG Y 
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU ADDYSG A PHLANT A’R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GOFAL 
CYMDEITHASOL AC IECHYD AR 25AIN IONAWR 2017

Nododd Mrs. A. Pickles nad oedd ei hymddiheuriadau ar gyfer y cyfarfod hwn wedi 
cael eu cofnodi. 

Roedd y Cynghorydd A. James hefyd am egluro fod ei ddatganiad o fuddiant yn 
anghywir ac mai ei wraig oedd yn nyrs mewn gwirionedd ac nid ei ferch.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn amodol ar y newidiadau uchod, lofnodi 
cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 25ain Ionawr 2017 yn gofnod cywir.  

13. DERBYN COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR Y CYD AR GYFER YR 
HOLL BWYLLGORAU CRAFFU AR 15FED CHWEFROR 2017

Eglurodd Mrs. A. Pickles fod ei datganiad o fuddiant yn anghywir ac y dylai fod wedi 
darllen fel a ganlyn: "Mae hi’n Gyfarwyddwr ar Gwmni Buddiannau Cymunedol sy’n 
darparu cyrsiau Therapi Cwnsela. Bydd y Cwmni efallai’n cyflwyno neu’n rhan o 
gonsortiwm a allai gyflwyno tendr i’r Cyngor yn y dyfodol”.  

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn amodol ar y newid uchod, lofnodi cofnodion 
y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar y cyd ar gyfer yr holl bwyllgorau craffu ar 25ain Ionawr 2017 
yn gofnod cywir. 

LLOFNODWYD: (Cadeirydd) 

DYDDIAD:

Tudalen 65



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol


	Agenda
	5 DIWEDDARIAD RHIANTA CORFFORAETHOL.
	Adroddiad
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	6 EGLURHAD AM BEIDIO A CHYFLWYNO ADRODDIAD CRAFFU.
	7 LLOFNODI FEL COFNOD CYWIR COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR A GYNHALIWYD AR Y 15EG MAWRTH, 2017.

